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HTL LIMITED

Registered Office: GST Road, Guindy, Chennai - 600 032
CIN: U93090TN1960PL.C004355
Email: coo@htllimited.com; Website: www.htllimited.com
Phone: 044-22501020.

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Sixty Second Annual General Meeting of HTL Limited
will be held on Friday, the 28® July, 2023 at 12.30 P.M. at the Registered Office of the
Company at GST Road, Guindy, Chennai — 600 032 and thru” Video Conferencing over
MS Teams to transact the following business:

The link will be provided by the Company to the Members who send their requests from
their registered email id with the Company for attending this meeting thru” Video
Conferencing over MS Teams.

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company

for the year ended 315 March, 2023 together with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.  To appoint a Director in place of Shri Mahendra Nahata (holding DIN- 00052898)
who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri K. C. Jani (holding DIN- 02535299) who
retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself
for re-appointment.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

4,  To consider and approve re-appointment and revision in remuneration of Shri G. S.

Naidu, Chief Operating Officer as ‘Manager’ of the Company under the Companies
Act, 2013.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198,
Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereot for the
time being in force) and subject to the approval of the Central Government, if any
and such other approvals as maybe necessary, consent of the Company be and is
hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Shri G. S. Naidu, Chief Operating
Officer as the Manager of the Company w.e.f. 25.6.2022 for a period of one year as
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company
and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on
14.10.2022 with the revised remuneration as recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company and approved by the Board of Directors
of the Company in their meeting held on 20.1.2023 amounting to Rs. 61,75,129/-
p.a. for the period 1.4.2022 to 30.9.2022 and further increased to Rs. 85,00,000/-
w.e.f. 1.10.2022, upon the terms and conditions set out in the explanatory statement
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annexed to this Notice convening this meeting including remuneration to be paid in
the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the period of
his tenure.”

To consider and approve regularization of appointment of Additional Director,
Shri Rajeev Sabherwal, as Director of the Company under the Companies Act,
2013,

To consider and if thought fit, 1o pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 152, 160 &
161 and other applicabie provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Shri Rajeev Sabherwal (DIN:
08420761), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the
Board on 29" August, 2022 and whose term of office expires at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company and for appointment of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing proposing his candidature for the office of the Director
be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company who shall be liable to
retirement by rotation,”

To consider and ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force], and as recommended by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors in their Meeting held on 14"
October, 2022 the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration amounting to Rs.
75,000/~ (Rupees Seventy Five Thousand only) plus applicable taxes, pavable to
M/s STARP & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 004143),
Chennai, who are appointed as the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of cost
records made and maintained by the company for the products viz., Aramid
Reinforced Plastic (ARP) Rods, Fibre Reinforced Plastic (FRP) Rods, HDPE and
any other products coming under the purview of Cost Audit for the financial year
commencing on 01% April, 2022 and ending on 31° March, 2023,

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and
is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and to take all such steps
as may be necessary, proper, or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

To consider and increase the borrowing powers of the Board and authorization limit
to secure borrowings under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013,

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all the earlier resolutions passed in this
regard and subject to the provisions of Section 180 (1) (c) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings



of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, including any statutory modification{s) or re-
enactment(s) thercof, for the time being in force, and the Articles of Association
of the Company, the consent of the Sharcholders be and is hereby accorded to the
Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board™ which
term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board), to borrow any sum
or sums of money in any manner from time to time at its discretion, for the purpose
of the business of the Company, from any one or more Banks, Financial
Institutions, Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC), Firms, Companies, Bodies
Corporate, Mutual funds , Trusts, other organizations, institutions or any other
persons notwithstanding that the monies to be borrowed together with the monies
already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans as defined in
explanation to Section 180 (1) (¢) of the Companies Act, 2013, obtained or to be
obtained from the Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of business} may, at
any time, exceed the aggregate of the paid-up share capital of the Company its free
reserves and securities premium (that is to say reserves not set apart for any specific
purpose), subject to such aggregate borrowings not exceeding the amount which is
Rs. 500 Crores (Rupees Five Hundred Crores only) and that the Board be and is
hereby empowered and authorised to arrange or fix the terms and conditions of all
such monies to be borrowed from time to time as to interest, repayment, security or
otherwise as it may, in its absolute discretion, think fit.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this
resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessaty, proper, or desirable
and to settle any question, difficulty, doubt that may arise in respect of the
borrowing(s) aforesaid and further to do all such acts, deeds and things and to
execute all documents and writings as may be necessary, proper, desirable or
expedient to give effect to this resolution.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to
delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to a Committee constituted by the
Board and/or any member of such Committee or Manager or any Director or any
other officer of the Company or any other person in accordance with applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under including any

statutory amendment(s), modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force.”

Registered Office; By Order of the Board
GST Road, Guindy For HTL Limited
Chennai — 600 032.

Place: Chennai } (S. Narayanan)
Date: 15.06.2023 Company Secretary

Membership No. ACS 5772



Notes:

1.  Proxy

() Article 66 of the Articles of Association of the Company provides that a
member entitled to attend and vote at a meeting may appoint another person
(whether a member or not) as his proxy to attend a meeting and vote on a poll.
No member shall appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same occasion.
A proxy shall not be entitled to speak at a meeting or to vote except on a poll.
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing and be signed by the
appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing or if the appointer is a body
corporate, be under its seal or be signed by an officer or an attorney duly
authorised by it.

(i) Article 67 of the Articles of Association of the Company provides that the
instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if
any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or
authority shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than forty eight hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, or in the
case of a poll not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for taking of the
poll and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

2. DETAILS OF THE DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AND
DIRECTOR TO BE APPOINTED AT THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING PURSUANT TO SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON
GENERAL MEETINGS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY
SECRETARIES OF INDIA (ICSI) AS ON THE DATE OF NOTICE.

Name of the Director Shri Mahendra Nahata | Shri K. C. Jani Shri Rajeev Sabherwal
DIN 00052898 02535299 08420761

Date of Birth (Age in 19.5.1959 (64 vears) 18.01.1934 (69 | 03.12.1960 (62 years)
Years) years)

Date of first Appointment | 16.10.2001 29.10.2015 29.08.2022 N
Experience/Expertisein | He has a business | He retired as an | He has held prestigious
Specific Functional experience of more than | Executive Director command and  staff
Areas three decades. He is the | in IDBI Bank. He appointments  including

Promoter and Managing
Director of the Holding
Company viz., Himachal
Futuristic

Communications Ltd. He
is the wvisionary behind
the Company’s
technology  partnership,
business  development
and marketing initiatives,

has worked on all
the functions of
management mainly
Operations, Finance
and HR. He is a
visiting faculty at
some of the top-
notch  Indian B-
Schools and geod

counselor and a
motivator. His
expertise waould

certainly prove to be
an asset to the
Company.

serving in the Military
Operations  Directorate
twice. He has in-depth
knowledge of emerging
operational  paradigms
and technological
transformation. He has
been instrumental in
paving the future of the

Indian  Armed Forces
towards Net  Centric
Capabilities and
Information Warfare,
With an astute
understanding and

penchant for Operational
Cominunications, he has




been  instrumental in
steering the policy and
doctrine formulations in
the modern
communication
battlespace.

Cualification(s)

B.Com (Hons.)

He is an
Engineering
Graduate in
Chemical and has
done Post-
Graduation in
Business

He is a graduate of
Defence Services Staff
College, Wellington,
Higher Command
Course, Mhow  and
National Defence
College, New Dethi. He

Administration. is & Member of The
Institution of Electronics
and Telecommunication
Engineers.
Directorship in other HFCL Limited; TFS Business | Nil
Companies Reliance Jio Infocomm gf:;?iimited!nd]a
Limited;
Areion Assets
HFCL Technologies Mfmagem'en.t
Private Limited: Private Limited;
MN Ventures Private | SflL- Himachal
e Enﬁ'a§;tructt.1re. and
Tourism Limited:
Krishiv Ventures Private
Limited: Greve'k lnvesm}ents
and Finance Private
Pranatharthi Ventures | Limited;
Private Limited.
ACAIPL
[nvestment &
Financial Services
| Private Limiled;
Chairmanship/ HTL Limited: HTL Limited: Nil
Membership of Nominatim? & | Audit  Committee-
Committees {across all Remunleratlon Mg,
) Committee- Member
public Cos.) Corporate  Social
HFCL Limited: Responsibility
Chairman of Corporale | Committee-
Social Responsibility | Member,
Committee,
Chairman of  Risk Risk lManagemem
. Committee-
Management Committee, i
Memiber.

Chairman of Cominittee
of Directors (Banking
Operation),

Chairman of Fund

Raising Committee.

Reliance Jio Infocomm
Limited:

Member of Allotment
Committee.




from 20.1.2023.

Shareholding in the Nil Nil Nil

Company

Relationship with other | Nil Nil Nil

Directors and KMPs of

the Company

No. of Board Meetings 3/3 373 3/3

held / Attended during

the year 2023

Details of Nil Sitting  Fee  of | Sinting Fee of

Remuneration Rs.15,600/- per | Rs.15,000/- per meeting

sought to be paid meeting attended. attended,

Last Remuneration Nii Slttl[]g Fee of Rs, Sitting Fee of Rs. 2,500/-

B 2.500/- till | il 14.102022 & Rs.
14102022 & Rs. | 15,000/- per meeting
15,000/- per | attended from 20.1.2023.
meeting  attended

Terms and conditions
of re-appointment
and Remuneration

As mentioned in the

Resolutions and
Statements. Sharchoiders
may also refer
Remuneration Policy

which is available on the
website of the Company
Le. www.htllimited.com

As mentioned in the

Resolutions and
Statements.
Shareholders  may
also refer
Remuneration

Policy which s

available on the
website  of  the
Company ie.
www.htllimited.com

As mentioned in the

Resolutions and
Statements. Shareholders
may also refer
Remuneration Policy

which is available on the
website of the Company
i.e. www.htllimited.com

3. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

ITEM NO. 4

Shri G. S. Naidu, is a B.E. (Hons.) in Electrical

-~

University of Madhya Pradesh over

Fibre Cable and Telecom Equipments.

During his employment with M/s.

)
Manufacturing Business Operations, Green
his career with M/s. National Aluminium
having capital outlay of 2.4 billion
Telecommunication Ltd., the pioneer company in the field of

Engineering from Bhopal
decades of extensive experience in
field / Expansion projects. He started
Co. Lid. in 1985, during project stage
USD and later joined Ms.

Optel
Optical Fibre, Optical

HFCL at Goa Plant and M/s, Sudarshan Telecom

(a division of M/s. West Coast Paper Mills Ltd.) he spearheaded the entire business

activities of manufacturing of Op
power cable project of M/s.
General Cable Corporation,

as

tical Fibre Cable. He also headed a green field
General Cable Energy India Pvt. Ltd. (a unit of the
USA) having a capital outlay of 45 Million USD,

He has been appointed as the Chief Op
16.6.2015 and designated as the ‘Manage
Operating Officer of the Company h
‘Manager’ in pursuant to Section 2(53)
25.6.2022 for a period of one year without a

erating Officer of the Company w.e.f,
r’ of the Company. Shii G.S, Naidu, Chief
been re-appointed as the designated
of the Companies Act, 2013 w.ef
ny revision in his remuneration with the

approval of Board of Directors in their Meeting held on 14.10.2022 with the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.




After taking into consideration of (a) the last revision in his remuneration effected
on 1.4.2019; (b) the active role as the Chief Operating Officer of the Company; (c)
the prevailing compensation in the market of similar industries; (d) the growth
achieved in the Company; and (e} ensuring the long term success of the Company,
the Board of Directors on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Commitiee of the Company in their meeting held on 20.1.2023 approved the
proposal for revising the remuneration of Shri G.S. Naidu, Chief Operating Officer
of the Company and designated ‘Manager” during his tenure subject to the approval
of Members, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as
detailed in the Annexure- 1.

The information required under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is
furnished in the Annexure- IT which is forming part of this Explanatory Statement.

The re-appoiniment of Shri G. S. Naidu, Chief Operating Officer as Manager is for
a further period of one year w.e.f. 25.6.2022 on the existing terms and conditions,
at remuneration as approved by the Board on 20.1.2023 subject to the approval of
Members. A copy of the remuneration details of Shri G.S. Naidu is enclosed as
Annexure- 1. The same may be treated as the abstract of the terms of the
appointment of the Manager.

The details of Manager proposed to be re-appointed pursuant to Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are furnished in
Annexure- II1, which is forming part of this Explanatory Statement.

Shri G.S. Naidu along with his relatives, is deemed to be interested in the
Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice with regard to his re-
appointment,

Save and except the above, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company, and their relatives, is in any way concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at [tem No. 4 of the accompanying Notice.

The Board recommends the re-appointment of Shri G.S. Naidu as Manager of the
Company as set out in Item No. 4 for the approval by the Members of the
Company, by way of Special Resolution.

ITEM NO. 5

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, appointed Shri Rajeev Sabherwal (DIN: 08420761), as
an Additional Director w.e.f. 29.8.2022 as per the provisions of Sections 152 & 161
of the Companies Act, 2013 and he will hold office up to the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. He attended the Board Meeting held on 14¥ October, 2022 and
20" January, 2023. The Company has received a notice in writing proposing his
candidature for the office of the Director.

Keeping in view his experience and qualifications. it is in the best interest of the
Company if he is appointed as a Director of the Company.



The brief profile of Shri Rajeev Sabherwal (DIN: 08420761) to be appointed as a
Director of the Company is given under the heading “Details of Directors seeking
re-appointment and Director to be appointed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting pursuant to Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India as on the date of the Notice” is furnished
elsewhere in the Notice,

This Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under $S-2 on General
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Shri Rajeev Sabherwal (DIN: 08420761) along with his relatives, is deemed to be
interested in the Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice with
regard to his appointment.

Save and except the above, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company, and their relatives, is in any way concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Ttem No. 5 of the accompanying Notice.

The Board considers that the association of Shri Rajeev Sabherwal (DIN:
08420761) would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to avail
his services as a Director of the Company.

The Board recommends the appointment of Shri Rajeev Sabherwal (DIN:
08420761) as a Director as set out in Item No. 5 for the approval by the Members of
the Company, by way of an Ordinary Resolution.

ITEM NO. 6

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company is
required to appoint a Cost Accountant to audit the cost records for applicable
products being manufactured by the Company. Based on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, the Board at its meeting held on October 14, 2022, approved the
appointment of M/s STARP & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 004143} as the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct audit of cost records
maintained by the Company, pertaining to the for the products viz., Aramid
Reinforced Plastic (ARP) Rods, Fibre Reinforced Plastic (FRP) Rods, HDPE and
any other products coming under the purview of Cost Audit for the financial year
commencing on 01 April, 2022 and ending on 31* March, 2023, at a remuneration
of Rs. 75,000/~ (Rupees Seventy Five Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with Rule 14 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time,
the remuneration payable to Cost Auditors for the financial year 2022-23 as
recommended by the Audit Committee and subsequently approved by the Board of
Directors has to be ratified by the Members of the Company by way of an Ordinary
Resolution,

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, and their
relatives, is in any way concemned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution set out at [tem No. 6 of the accompanying Notice.



The Board recommends the ratification of remuneration payable to the Cost

Auditors as set out in Item No. 6 for approval by Members of the Company, by way
of an Ordinary Resolution.

ITEM NO. 7

Keeping in view the existing and future financial requirements to support the
Company’s business operations, the Company is in need of additional funds. For
this purpose, the Company may, from time to time, raise finance from various
Banks and / or Financial Institutions and / or any other lending institutions and / or
Bodies Corporate and / or such other persons / individuals as may be considered fit,
which, together with the money(s) already borrowed by the Company (apart from
temporary loans obtained from the Company’s Bankers in ordinary course of
business) may exceed the present limit of Rs.300 Crores. It is proposed to increase
the said limit to Rs.500 Crores.

Pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the prior consent of the
Shareholders is required empowering the Board for securing the borrowings for the
business operations of the Company.

Hence, the Special Resolution at Item No. 7 of the Notice is being proposed, since
the same exceeds the limits provided under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act. The
Majority of Board of Directors have recommended the Special Resolution in their
meeting held on 20.1.2023 as set out at Item No.7 of the accompanying Notice, for
Shareholders’ approval.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, and their
relatives, is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the accompanying Notice.

The Members are therefore requested to accord their approval to the above Special
Resolution,

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
GST Road, Guindy For HTL Limited
Chennai — 600 032. e

Place: Chennai /Q " (S. Narayanan)
Date: 15.06.2023 Company Secretary

Membership No. ACS 5772
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Remuneration

Name: Gilkara Shrinivas Naidu

Designation: Chief Operating Officer & Designated ‘Manager’

Annexure- [

Proposed Revisicn in

Proposed Revision

the Remuneration in the

Particulars from 1.4.2022 to Remuneration
30.9.2022 w.e.f. 1.10.2022
Per Annum Per Annum |

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Basic 21,70,162 28,67,716
House Rental Allowance 13,02,097 17,200,630
Special Allowance 4,11,219 5,43,397
Driver Charges 2,32,517 3,07,255
Car Maintenance & Fuel etc. 484,411 6,40,115
LTA 1,80,780 2,38,890

. Annual Gross Salary (A ) 47,81,186 63,18,003

Annual Benefits:

PF 2,60,419 3,44,126
Gratuity 1,04,335 1,37,871
 Total Annual Benefits (B) BT Tt 481,997
Annual Fixed CTC (A +B) 51,45,940 68,00,000
*Performance Linked Incentive ( C) 10,29,189 17,00,000
*#+One Time Bonus 3,00,000 B
| #%*]ong Term Incentive Plan - 19,67,609

Notes:

* PLI would be paid in two Half Yearly instalments in a year, on the basis of Company’s
performance score and / or employee’s performance score, as applicable across levels.

** One Time Bonus in November 2022.

of the Company during FY 2021-22.

*** The Long Term Incentive Plan amount is due on t.10.2022, based on the performance

The Long Term Incentive Plan amount of Rs. 47,78,478/- will be taken up in April
2023 after the declaration the financial results of the Company for FY 2022-23.
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Annexure- 111

INFORMATION OF MANAGER PROPOSED TO BE RE-APPOINTED IN
PURSUANT TO SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON GENERAL MEETINGS
ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA (ICSI)

7

AS ON THE DATE OF NOTICE.

Name of the Director Shri G. S. Naidu

PAN ABRPN4626P

Date of Birth (Age in Years) 19.07.1963 (59 years)

Date of first Appointment 25.06.2015

Experience/Expertise in Specific He is having a rich experience of more than

Functional Areas three decades in manufacturing operations,
including Optical Fibre Cables and also is
having specialized in manufacturing of
Optical Fibre Cables.

Qualification(s) B.E. Hons.

Directorship in other Companies

Nimpaa Telecommunications Private Limited
(Nominated by the Holding Company viz.,
HFCL Limited)

Chairmanship/ Membership of
Committees (across all public Cos.)

HTL Ltd:
Risk Management Committee- Member

Attended during the vear 2023

Shareholding in the Company Nil
Relationship with other Directors Nil
and KMPs of the Company

No. of Board Meetings held / 3/3

Details of Remuneration
sought to be paid

Rs. 61,75,129/- p.a. for the period 1.4.2022 to
30.9.2022 and further increased to Rs.
85,00,000/- wetf 1.10.2022.

Last Remuneration drawn

Rs. 56,21,739/-

Terms and conditions
of re-appointment
and Remuneration

As mentioned in the Resolutions and
Statements. Shareholders may also refer
Remuneration Policy which is available on
the  website of the Company i.e.
www.htllimited.com

The above statement may be treated as part of Statement annexed under Section 102 of

the Companies Act, 2013 for Ttem No. 4 of the AGM Notice.,
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HTL LTD.
Registered Office: G.S.T. Road, Guindy, Chennai - 600 032.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To the Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 62" Annual Report and Audited Accounts
for the financial year ended 31% March 2023,

FINANCIAL RESULTS (Rs. in crore)
PARTICULARS 2022-23 | 2021-22
Revenue from Operations 1264.41 | 1010.05
Other Income 4.31 2.76
Total Income 1268.72 | 1,012.81
Profit / (loss) Before Depreciation, Finance Charges, 151.18 127.78
Exceptional [tem viz., VRS Ex-gratia and Taxation
Less: Depreciation 25.11 20.46

Finance Charges 36.04 34.44
VRS Ex-gratia - 6.38
Taxation 25.08 17.16
Net Profit/ (Loss) for the year 64.95 49.34
Other Comprehensive Income /Expenditure Re-measurement of
defined benefit plans (0.36) (0.17)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 64.59 49.17
Cost towards the options (ESOP / RSU) granted to the - (0.26)
Employees of the Company by the Holding Company.
Surplus / (Deficit) Brought Forward from Previous Year 63.77 14.86
Surplus / (Deficit) Carried to the Balance Sheet 128.36 63.77

DIVIDEND

After taking into consideration of the expansion plans of the Company wherein the
required Margin money has to be met out of the internal resources, no dividend can be

recommended for the year.

RESERVES

The profits of the Company for the year ended 31%' March 2023 of Rs. 64.95 Crores has
been retained in the Surplus account. There were no other transfers to the Reserves for the

year under review.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There is no change in the capital structure of the Company during the year under review.




OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Company has achieved a Turnover of Rs. 1,26,441.06 Lakhs during the financial
year 2022-23 and the value of sales of different products made during the year under
review with comparative figures of the previous year are:-

(Rs in Lakhs)

PRODUCTS 2022-23 2021-22

Sale of Products — OFC, FRP & OFC Accessories | 1,26,028.21 | 1,00,540.96
Sale of Services 196.23 222,45
Other Operating Revenues 216.62 241,29
TOTAL 1,26,441.06 | 1,01,004.70

Following its planned expansion, your company anticipates additional growth in both the
domestic and export sectors in the upcoming fiscal year.

OUTLOOK
OFC, Cable Reinforcement Solutions & Polymer Compounds

With 5G deployments picking up pace in the country, all the leading telcos are set to
strengthen optical fiber cable connectivity across National Long Distance & Access
Networks. Increased adoption of FTTH Services & demand for OFCs along Greenfield
highways coupled with ongoing upgradation of 4G rural networks can be seen as drivers
for growth. Your Company has growth potential in these market opportunities.

Passive Component Solutions

Large-scale deployment of data centres & ongoing deployment of 5G-communication
infrastructure along with heightened demand for bandwidth than ever before, presents
significant opportunities of growth for Passive connectivity products. In lieu of these

trends, Fiber & Copper Cabling products as manufactured by the company has better
prospects.

Automotive & Industrial

Increasing proliferation of Electric Vehicle (EV) Manufacturers, announcement of Auto
Production Linked Incentives (PLIs), higher exports and with more supply chain shifts
from China to India constitutes major tailwinds for the Automotive Industry. Per-vehicle
automotive hamess consumption is exponentially increasing across ICE (Internal
Combustion Engines) & EV (Electric Vehicles) models across segments which offers

better growth prospects for wiring harness & other products as manufactured by the
company.

Aerospace & Defence

Release of fourth “Positive Indigenisation List’ (PIL) & enabling of simplified procedures
to promote local production & procurement from the domestic defence industry along
with Ministry of Defence’s (MoD) rigorous monitoring of the progress made by DPSUs
(Defence Public Sector Undertakings) on Indigenization targets augurs well for the
domestic industry. All of these, in tum, serve as an opportunity for the company to
capitalize on the expected growth in this space.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
Optical Fiber Cables

OFC annual capacity augmented from 11.75 Mn FKM to 11.88 Mn FKM.
Establishment of Polymer Plant at Hosur

Polymer Compound production started at Hosur Plant in Sept’22 with an annual capacity
of 24,000 MT. HDPE (Black, Colour & Low-Shrinkage) & LSZH-Black were
successfully developed and is being supplied to the Company’s Plant at Chennai & the
plants of the Holding Company viz., HFCL at Hyderabad & Goa.

Injection Moulding Plant

Injection Moulding Plant has been in operation at Chennai Plant since 15 Dec’22 for
manufacturing plastic parts for Accessories, Auto Harness and other requirements of the
Company and its Holding Company viz., HFCL Limited.

Awards & Recognition

Your Company has been recognized as the ‘Emerging Company of the Year® during the
8" International Aerospace & Defence Awards as conducted on the eve of Defence Expo
2022 in Gandhinagar, Gujarat as transpired in Oct’22.

Plant Certifications

You Company was accredited with ISO 22301 (BCMS- Business Continuity
Management System) Certification as awarded by BSI in Jan’23.

Your Company’s Automotive & Industrial Wire Harness Facility at Hosur plant got
accredited with IATF 16949 Certification, the foremost quality management standard for
the Automotive Industry.

Trademark Applied

Your Company applied for the trademark “HTL DATACONNECT” under class 9 of
Trademarks Act, 1999 for its products with the Trademark Registry, Chennai during the
year under review and the registration is under process.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL
YEAR UNDER REVIEW

There were four meetings held during the Financial Year 2022-23 1.e., on 25.04.2022,
15.07.2022, 14.10.2022, and 20.01.2023. The intervening gap between two meetings of
the Board is within the stipulated time prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013.

ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31 2022 in prescribed e-form MGT-7 in
accordance with Section 92(3) of the Act, read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, is
available on the website of the Company and may be accessed at the web-link;
hitps://htllimited.com/uploadimages/220822163227 AnnualReturn-202 1 -22.pdf




Further, the Annual Return i.e. e-form MGT-7 for the 'Y 2023 shall be filed by the
Company with the Registrar of Companies, Tamil Nadu within the stipulated period and
the same can also be accessed thereafter on the Company’s website.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION
DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION
DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

The Rule § (5) of Accounts Rules, 2014 w.r.t. the details of difference between amount of
the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and the valuation done while taking

loan from the Banks or Financial Tnstitutions is not applicable to the Company during the
year under review.,

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS.

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014
outstanding as at 31% March, 2023 are as follows:

Particulars { Amount in Rs,

Loans given NIL

Guarantees provided NIL

Investments made 18,59,950
HOLDING COMPANY

HFCL Limited is the Holding Company and is having 74% equity shares in the Company,
The Holding Company is a Listed Public Limited Company and its CIN is
L64200HP1987PLC0O07466 and their Registered Office is at 8, Electronics Complex,
Chambaghat, Solan — 173 213 (Himachal Pradesh),

PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

In pursuant to Rule 8 (1) of Accounts Rules 2014, the highlights on performance of
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are not applicable to the Company.

COMPANY’S POLICY ON  DIRECTOR’S  APPOINTMENT  AND
REMUNERATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company identifies and
ascertains the integrity, qualifications, expertise and experience of the person for
appointment as Director, Manager, Key Management Personnel (KMP) or at senior
management personnel and recommend to the Board his / her appointment. A person
should possess adequate qualifications, expertise and experience for the position he / she
is considered for appointment in the Company.

As per the policy followed by the Company, the non-executive directors are paid
remuneration in the form of sitting fee for attending Board and Committee meetings as
fixed by the Board of Directors from time to time, subject to the statutory provisions. The
Remuneration Policy of the Company may be accessed at the web-link:
https://htllimited.com/uploadimages/060422152133RemunerationPolicy.pdf
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The sitting fees was revised from Rs. 2,500/- to Rs.15,000/- per Board / Committee
meeting w.e.f. 20.1.2023 by the Board of Directors on recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The NRC considers pay and employment conditions in the industry, merit and seniority of
the person and the paying capacity of the Company for the appointment and remuneration
of Manager and other Key Management Personnel viz., Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary.

The NRC fixes the remuneration package of Manager, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary after taking into consideration the level and composition of
remuneration to be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the person to
ensure the quality required to run the Company successfully. The remuneration comprises
of salary, perquisites, allowances apart from the retirement benefits like Provident Fund,
Superannuation, Gratuity, etc. as per the Rules of the Company. Further, the Manager is
entitled to customary non-monetary benefits such as company car, furnished
accommodation, health care benefits, leave travel, communication facilities, etc. The
terms of the appointment also provide for severance payment,

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In pursvant to Section 178 with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee with
three Members viz., Shri R. M. Kastia, Chairman, Shri Mahendra Nahata, Member, and
Dr. Tamali Sengupta, Member.

Dr. Tamali Sengupta inducted as Member of the Committee w.e.f. 14.10.2022.

Shri Sharad Trivedi ceased to be a Member of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee consequent upon his cessation as a Director of the Company w.e.f. 1.3.2023
on his superannuation from the services of Government of India.

There were three meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee held during
the Financial Year 2022-23 i.c., on 25.04.2022, 14.10.2022, and 20.01.2023,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and also its policy
of Corporate Social Responsibility pursuant to the requirements under the Companies
Act, 2013,

The Members of the CSR Committee are Dr. R. M. Kastia, Chairman, Shri K. C. Jani,
Member, and Dr. Tamali Sengupta, Member.

Dr. Tamali Sengupta inducted as Member of the Committee w.e.f. 14.10.2022.

Shri Sharad Trivedi ceased to be a Member of the CSR Committee consequent upon his
cessation as a Director of the Company w.e.f. 1.3.2023 on his superannuation from the
services of Government of India.

There was one meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee held on
17.03.2023 during the Financial Year 2022-23,



REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT (RTA)

M/s. KFIN Technologies Limited (formerly KFIN Technologies Private Limited), having
its office at Selenium, Tower B, Plot No. 31 & 32, Gachibowli, Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad-500 032 are the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Company has entered into transactions with related
party viz.,, HFCIL Limited, the Holding Company and its Associate Company viz.,
Nimpaa Telecommunications Private Limited and Other Related Company viz., Exicom
Tele-Systems Limited, as defined under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Specification of Definitions Details) Rules, 2014, which were in the
ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis and in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules issued there under.

The Company has not entered into any transactions with the related parties which were at
arm’s length basis but not in ordinary course of business.

The details of the related party transactions as required under Indian Accounting
Standard- 24 are set out in Note No. 41 to the Financial Statements forming part of this
Annual Report.

The Company’s policy on Related Party Transaction is available on the website of the

Company at the web-link: https:/htllimited.com/uploadimages/271022154227HTL-
PolicyonRPT.pdf

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review the Company has not accepted any deposit within the
meaning of Section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

DIRECTORS

As on March 31, 2023, the Company had 6 (Six) Directors on the Board and there is one
vacancy of Nominee Director of Government of India.

During the year under review, on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee the Board of Directors appointed Dr. Tamali Sengupta (DIN: 00358658) as a
Non-Executive Additional Director, w.e.f. 25.4.2022, who was further appointed as a
Woman Director (Independent) for one term of consecutive five years, w.e.f. 25.4.2022 to
24.4.2027, by the Shareholders of the Company in their 61° Annual General Meeting by
special resolution. The Company has received a declaration from the said Independent
Director confirming that she met the criteria of Independence as prescribed under the
provisions of the Act, read with the Schedules and Rules issued thereunder (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and she is
independent of Management. In the opinion of the Board, she possesses requisite
qualifications, experience, expertise and holds highest standards of integrity. She also
fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act') as well as the
Rules made thereunder and are independent of the management.
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Shri Rajeev Sabherwal (DIN: 08420761) was appointed as an Additional Director (Non-
Executive), by the Board w.e.f. 29.8.2022 and he holds office up to the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. His appointment as Director of the Company is being placed before the
Shareholders for regularisation in the ensuing AGM.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act Shri Mahendra Nahata (DIN:
00052898) and Shri K.C. Jani (DIN: 02535299) are retiring by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

Shri Amit Katoch (DIN: 09349281) ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 20.1.2023 consequent
upon his transfer of Services by Government of India.

Shri Sharad Trivedi (DIN: 08977689), Nominee Director of the Department of
Telecommunications, Government of India ceased to be Director of the Company w.e.f.
1.3.2023 on his superannuation from the GOI Services on 28.2.2023.

Shri B. K. Nath (DIN: 10110868) has been nominated as a Director of Government of
India w.e.f. 23.3.2023. The Government of India is yet to appoint one Nominee Director.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In pursuant to Section 177(8) with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has an Audit Committee with three Members viz.,
Dr. R. M. Kastia, Chairman, Shri K. C. Jani, Member, and Dr. Tamali Sengupta, Member.

Shri Amit Katoch ceased to be a Member of the Audit Comumittee consequent upon his
cessation as a Director of the Company w.e.f. 20.1.2023 on transfer of services by
Government of India.

There were five meetings held during the Financial Year 2022-23 ie.,-on 25.04.2022,
15.07.2022, 14.10.2022, 15.12.2022 and 20.01.2025.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

(a) Location and time where Annual General Meetings of the Company held in the last
3 years are given below:

Financial Year Location Date Time

Regd. Office, GST Road, Guindy, Chennai
2021-22. Through Video Conferencing over MS 29.07.2022 12 Noon
Teams

Regd. Office, GST Road, Guindy, Chennai
2020-21 Through Video Conferencing over MS 16.07.2021 12 Noon
Teams

Regd. Office, GST Road, Guindy, Chennai
2019-20 Through Video Conferencing over MS 07.08.2020 12 Noon
Teams

(b) Location and time where Extra Ordinary General Meetings of the Company held in
the last 3 years are given below:



Financial Year Location Date Time

2021-22 Nil

Regd. Office, GST Road, Guindy, Chennai
2020-21 Through Video Conferencing over MS Teams L0,  Jioon
2019-20 Nil

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Directors confirm that the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, as applicable to the Company have been complied with.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Shri G. S. Naidu, Manager, Shri C. D. Ponnappa, Chief
Financial Officer and Shri S. Narayanan, Company Secretary & General Manager (Legal)
continue to be the Key Management Personnel in accordance with the provisions of
Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

Shri G.S. Naidu, Chief Operating Officer has been re-appointed as ‘Manager’ of the
Company w.e.f. 25.06.2022 for a further period of one year with required approvals.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES’ AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules
5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Management
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force), a statement showing the names of top ten employees
of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn as per the said Rules are given in
ANNEXURE I annexed herewith and forms part of this Report.

There is no employee drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect
to Directors” Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

1. that in the preparation of the accounts for the financial year ended 31% March, 2023,
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanations relating to material departures;

2. that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent
(read with Note No. 3 of Notes to the Audited Statement of Accounts) so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

3. that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

4, that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
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5. that the Directors have laid down proper internal financial controls to be followed by
the Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively; and

6. that the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

DEPOSITORY SYSTEMS

Your Company’s Scrip has come under compulsory dematerialisation as per the amended
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. So far, 74% of the equity shares have been
dematerialised.

The ISIN allotted to the equity of the Company is INE133T01011.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The vision of CSR of the Company is to improve quality of life (social & economic) of
the community and society in which it operates.

Mobile Medical Unit, Chennai

The Company in association with a recognized NGO viz., M/s. Wockhardt Foundation
has taken up a CSR project for promoting preventive healthcare to the needy people in
and around Chennai through Mobile Medical Unit at a total cost of Rs. 1,05,00,000/-
(Rupees One Crore and Five Lakhs only) for a project period of 3 years during the FY
2021-22 with a target to benefit about 25000 needy people and is in progress. The said
project cost is met out of the CSR obligation of the Company for Financial Year 2020-21
to the tune of Rs. 65,48,425/- and the residual amount of Rs. 39,51,575/- is met from the
CSR obligation of the Financial Year 2021-22.

The said Mobile Medical Unit (MMU) is accompanied by a professional healthcare team
comprising of a qualified Doctor, a Lab Technician & a Pharmacist and is equipped to
offer diagnostics, medicines, blood/ urine tests, etc., all of which are made available to the
beneficiaries free of cost.

Mobile Medical Unit, Hosur

The Company in association with a recognized NGO viz., M/s. Wockhardt Foundation
has taken up a CSR project for promoting preventive healthcare to the needy people
through Mobile Medical Unit at a total cost of Rs. 51,50,550/- (Rupees Fifty One Lakhs
Fifty Thousand Five Hundred and Fifty only) for a period of One Year in and around
Hosur w.e.f. FY 2022-23. Of which Rs. 46,54,460/- has been allocated from the CSR
Obligation of the Company for FY 2021-22.

In line with the Chennai project, the project period has been extended to 3 years from 1
year with the incremental cost of Rs. 53,49,450/- during the year under review. The
residual cost of Rs. 58,45,540/- will be met from the Company’s CSR obligation of I'Y
2022-23.

Mobile Medical Unit II, Chennai

After taking into consideration of the requirement of the needy people in Chennai, your
Company has planned to take up a 2" Mobile Medical Unit (MMU) Project in Chennai in
association with Wockhardt Foundation for providing health care to about 25,000 needy



people per annum over a period of 3 years with an initial contribution of Rs. 40,60,125/-
during financial year 2022-23 at a total cost of Rs. 1,08,85,456/- and the residual amount
of Rs. 68,25,331/- will be met out of the CSR obligation of financial year 2023-24.

The CSR Obligation of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 comes to
Rs. 99,05,665/-. Since the Company could not spend this amount during the Financial
Year 2022-23, the Company has taken action to open a Bank Account in Yes Bank Ltd,
T.Nagar Branch, Chennai — 600 017 in the name “HTL Ltd.- Unspent Corporate Social
Responsibility Account FY 2022-23" and the amount of Rs. 99,05,666/- has been
deposited to the said account on 24.04.2023 as per the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021,

In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Act, the Company has laid
down a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy along with Composition of
Committee. The CSR Policy along with Composition of Committee is available on the
website of the Company and may be accessed at the web-link:
https://htllimited.com/uploadimages/120423145219CSRPolicy & CompositionofCommitte
e.pdf.

The disclosures as required under the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules
are furnished in ANNEXURE II and forms part of this Report.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

At the 59™ Annual General Meeting of the Company, M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company
(Firm Registration. No. 016520N), Chartered Accountants, New Delhi were appointed for
one term of consecutive 5 years as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office till
the conclusion of 64" Annual General Meeting.

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.
y4q

Further, there were no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors to the Audit Committee
or the Board under Section 143(12) of the Act.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your
Company has appointed Shri R. Balasubramanian, Practising Company Secretary having
Membership No. F10011 and C.P.No.11979 to conduct the Secretarial Audit of your
Company for the financial year 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed
herewith as ANNEXURE 111 to this Report.

Remarks by Secretarial Auditor

Further, the Company is required to appoint 2 (Independent Directors) pursuant to
Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, of which, the Company has already
appointed 1 {One) Independent Director and further in the process of identification and
appointment of another Independent Director.

Explanation by the Board pursuant to Section 134(3)(f) of the Act

The Company has already appointed one Independent Director who is independent of
management. The Company is in the process of identifying a suitable person for
appeinting him / her as another Independent Director as per the provisions of the Act,



read with the Schedules and Rules issued thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force).

PERSONNEL

The manpower strength at the close of the financial year was 397 as compared to 391 at
the beginning of the financial year.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY/ TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo as stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the'Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out in ANNEXURE IV and forms
part of this Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN
MARCH 31,2022 AND DATE OF THIS REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company between the end of the financial year (March 31, 2023) and date of this Report
(April 28, 2023).

APPLICATION MADE OR PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY
CODE, 2016 (IBC)

In pursuant to the Rule 8(5) of Accounts Rules 2014, there is no application made or
pending under IBC, 2016 during the year under review.

SIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There are no significant/ material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts or Tribunals
impacting the going concern status of your Company and its operations in future.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)

Your Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31% March, 2023 are the
financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendments Rules, 2016 as applicable.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Having regard to Rule 8 (5) (viit) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the details in
respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of the Company are as follows:

Your Company maintains appropriate systems of internal control including monitoring
procedures. These internal control systems ensure reliable and accurate financial
reporting, safeguarding of assets, keeping constant check on cost structure and adhering
to management policies. The internal controls are commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of our operations and facilitate timely detection of any irregularities and early



remedial steps against factors such as loss from unauthorized use and disposition,
Company policies, guidelines and procedures provide for adequate checks and balances
which are meant to ensure that all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported
correctly. The internal controls are continuously assessed and improved / modified to
meet changes in business conditions, statutory and accounting requirements.

Constant monitoring of the effectiveness of controls is ensured by periodical audits
performed by the external Internal Auditor viz., M/s Anil Aggarwal & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Chennai — 600 032.

The Audit Committee regularly meets and reviews the results of the various internal
control audits both with the Auditors as well as with the respective Auditees.

The Audit Committee is apprised of the findings as well as the corrective actions that are
taken. Periodical meetings between the Audit Committee and the Company Management

also ensure the necessary checks and balances that may need to be built into the control
system.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has a comprehensive risk management policy to take care of the business
and other risks related to the Company.

The Risk Management Policy of the Company may be accessed at the web-link:
https:/htllimited.com/uploadimages/190221130320HTL-RiskManagementPolicy.pdf

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

As required under Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Meetings of Boards and its Powers) 2014, the Company has adopted a
policy on vigil mechanism / whistle blower. The policy provides direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee in case any employee should choose to report or bring
up a complaint.

Your Company affirms that no one has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and also that no complaints were received during the year.

The Policy on Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed at

the web-link: https:/htllimited.com/uploadimages/060422144313 WhistleBlowerPolicy-
VigilMechanism-HTL final.pdf

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The Company has a Committee to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees) are covered under this system. No
complaints were received during the year under review.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Important factors that would make a difference to the Company’s operations/ future
prospects include demand supply conditions, raw material prices, changes in government

regulations, tax regimes and economic developments within the country and abroad and
such other factors.
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CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year
under review.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS

There were no such frauds which were reported by Auditors during the year, under
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

Your Company has maintained cost accounts and records as specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and the relevant rules made
thereunder.

The Board at its meeting held on October 14, 2022, appointed M/s. STARP & Associates,
Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No, 004143) as the Cost Auditors of the Company
on recommendation of the Audit Committee to conduct audit of cost records maintained
by the Company, for the products viz., Aramid Reinforced Plastic (ARP) Rods, Fibre
Reinforced Plastic (FRP) Rods, HDPE and any other products coming under the purview
of Cost Audit for the financial year commencing on 01* April, 2022 and ending on 318
March, 2023 in accordance with the Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, The remuneration is fo be ratified by the Members
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the valuable co-operation
and support received from Department of Telecommunications, Government of India,
Government of Tamil Nadu, the Banks, and other stakeholders such as Sharcholders,
Customers and Suppliers, among others. The Directors look forward to their continued
support in future.

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation of the dedicated efforts
put in by the employees at all levels in the Company.

Your Directors acknowledge your continued trust and confidence on the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: New Delhi R. M. Kastia K. C. Jani

Date ; 28.04.2023 Director Director
DIN: 00053059 DIN: 02535299
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Annexure IT to the Directors’ Report

Annual Report on CSR Activities for the Financial Year 2022- 23

1.

2.

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company has the CSR committee and its CSR policy
in pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

The Board has broadly identified the following CSR activities, around which your
Company shall be focusing:

() Promoting preventive health care.

(ii)  Sanitation and making available safe drinking water.

(iii)  Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition.

(iv)  To arrange establish, run, manage, control, look after and supervise the
widows homes, old age homes, orphanages, child welfare centers and to
provide medical relief and/or aid to the suffering human body.

(v}  To establish sponsor, administer and provide funds, stipends, scholarships
and study grants to enable poor deserving and /or meritorious students and

~ teachers to pursue their studies, research and training in any fields in India.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. [Name of Director Designation / Nature of | Number of Number of
No. Directorship meetings of | Meetings of CSR
CSR Committee
Committee | attended during
lield during the the year
year
1 | Dr. R.M. Kastia Chairman / Non — 1 1
Executive Director
2 | Shri K.C. Jani Member / Non — 1 1
Executive Director
3 | Dr. Tamali Member / Non — 1 1
Sengupta. Executive Woman
Independent Director

Dr. Tamali Sengupta nominated as Member of the Committee w.e.f. 14.10.2022.

Shri Sharad Trivedi Ceased to be a Member in the Committee consequent upon
cessation of his directorship on his superannuation from the Services of the
Government of India w.e.f. March 01, 2023 on his Superannuation.

Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and
CSR Projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the
Company:

Composition of CSR Committee:

https://htllimited.com/uploadimages/120423145219CSRPolicy&CompositionofCo
mumittee.pdf



CSR Policy:
https://htllimited.com/uploadimages/120423145219CSRPolicy& CompositionofCo
mmittee, pdf

Approved CSR Projects:
https://htllimited.com/uploadimages/080622162407HTLCSRProject-Chennai.pdf
https:/htllimited.com/uploadimages/0806221626 1 4HHTLCSRProject-Hosur.pdf

htips:/hillimited.com/uploadimages/300323180053HTL. CSR Project-
2ndMMUChennat.pdf

4.  Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of
CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3} of rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable.

Not Applicable.

5.  (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

The average net profits of the Company during the last three years is Rs.
49,52,83,265.63/-.

{b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):
Rs. 99,05,665/-.

(¢)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years:

Nil

(d)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any:
Not Applicable.

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]:
Rs. 99,05,665/-.

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than
Ongoing Project).

1@ 3 4 6] © | ) | (8 ©) (10) (11)
S,

Name of [item from [Local area(l.ocation of [Project ;Amount [Amount [Amount Mode of |Yode of
No. [the the list of |(Yes/No) ithe project duration jallocated [spent in transferred to [Implement/Implementation -
Project. |activities in for the |[the Unspent CSR |ation - Through
Schedule project |current [Account for  |Direct Implementing
IVII to the (in Rs.} |financial the project as |(Yes/No) |Agency
Act. Year (in |per Section

Rs.) 135(6) (in Rs.)

State. |Distr Name |[CSR
ict. Registrat
ion

number
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Mobile
Medical
Clinic-
Chenna
i

Premoting
Preventive
Health
Care

Yes

Tamil
Nadu

Chennai

3yrs

1,05,00,000

26,41,260

Ltd.

CSR

Rs.

&

Ltd.

CSR

(i) HTL
Unspent
Account-
65,48,425/-

(i) HTL
Unspent
Account-
FY 2021-

22-Rs.
39,51,575/-

No

Wockhardt Foundation

CSR00000161

Mobile
Medical
Clinic-
Hosur

Promoting
Preventive
Health
Care

Yes

Tamil
Nadu

Hosur

3yrs

1,05,00,000

24.85.920

Ltd.

CSR

{iy HTL
Unspent

Account-
FY 2021-
22- Rs.
46,54,460/-

Wockhardt
Foundation

CSR0O0000161

Total

1,05,00,000

51,27,180
1,51,54,460

(b) Amount spent in Administrative QOverheads: - Nil

(¢) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: - Not Applicable
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: - Rs. 51,27,180/-
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 2022-23:

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Amount Total Amount Amount transferred to any
S[_)ent f.or the| ransferred to Unspent | fund specified under Schedule
Financial CSR Account as per VII as per second proviso to
Year. 2022- | section 135(6). section 135(5).
23 (in Rs.)

Amount | Date of | Name of | Amount | Date of

transfer the transfer
Fund
Nil G89.05,666 24.04.2023 Nil




(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: - Nil

Sl [Particular Amount
No, (in Rs.)
(i) [Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 99,05,665
section 135(5)
(i1) {Total amount spent for the Financial Year Nil
(iii) [Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil
(1v) [Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or Nil
activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) |Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years Nil
[(iii)-(iv)]
7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
SL | Preceding | Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount
No.| Financial | transferred Amount in | spent in transferred to any | remaining to be
Year to Unspent Unspent the fund specified spent in
CSR CSR Financial | under Schedule succeeding
Account Account Year (in VII as per second financial years.
under under Rs.) provisc to section (in Rs.)
section 135 Section 135 135(5), if any.
(6) (in Rs.) (6) (in Rs.) Amount | Date of
(in Rs} transfer
1.1 2019-20 - - - - - -
2.1 2020-21 65,48,425 | 40,63,135 206,411,260 - - 14,21,875
3. 2021-22 86,006,035 | 86,06,035 24.85920 - - 61,20,115
Total 1,51,54,460 | 1,26,69,170 51,27,180 - - 75,41,990
8.

Whether any capital has been created or acquired through CSR amount spent
in the financial year: Yes

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created / acquired

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through
Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the financial year (All the fields
should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no,
Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified
and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries): -

Sk | Short Pincode Date of Amount Details of entity/ Authority/

No. | particulars of | of the creation of CSR beneficiary of the registered owner
the property | property amount CSR Name Registered
or or spent Registration address
asset(s) asset(s) Number, if
lincluding applicable
complete
address  and
location of the
property]

[. | Force Motors | 633 109 29.7.2022 | 24,85,920 | CSRO00O0161 | Wockhardt | Wockhardt
{ LCV Mobile Foundation | Towers,
Medical Bandra
Unit (MMU) Kurla
Force Complex,

vy
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Traveller Mumbai-
400 031
H.No-143, Nai
Abadi Gali
No-8, Police
Choki Arjun
Nagargurgaon-
122001
Gurgaon
Haryana

Location:
Hosur, Tamil
Nadu

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the
average net profit as per section 135(5): -

Since the Company could not spend on its approved CSR Projects which are in
progress during FY 2022-23, the amount of Rs. 99,05,666/- has been transferred to a
separate bank Account viz., HTL Ltd.- Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility
Account FY 2022-23 on 24.04.2023 as per the Act.

Date : 28.04.2023 R. M. Kastia K. C. Jani
Chairman of CSR Committee Director
DIN: 00053059 DIN: 02535209



Annexure III to the Directors’ Report

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnef) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

HTL Limited,

CIN: U93090TN [960PLC004355
G.S.T. Road, Guindy,

Chennai - 600032

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by HTL Limited (hereinafter called “the Company™)
for the year ended 31.03.2023. The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me

a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon,

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31% March 2023 (‘Audit Period”), has complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-Processes and

Compliance-Mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March 2023 according to the
provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(Not applicable during the Audit period).

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (Not
applicable during the Audit period).

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable during the Audit period).

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securitics and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBT Act’): -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;(Not applicable during the Audit period).
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b.

d.

-

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015; (Not applicable during the Audit period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable during the Audit
period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015(Not applicable during the Audit period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable during the Audit period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable during the Audit
period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client (Not applicable during the Audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable during the Audit period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018 (Not applicable during the Audit period).

6. Labour Laws:

a
b

.0

ool = T i ¢

L.

. The Factories Act, 1948

. Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

. Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948
The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970
The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

. The Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986
The Industrial Employment (Standing Qrders) Act, 1946

m. The Employees” Compensation Act, 1923

n

7. Enviro

a.
b
C.

. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976
nmental [aws:

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981



Based on the representation given by the Management of the Company, it is observed that there
are no other laws which are specifically applicable to the business of the Company.,
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following;

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General
Meetings (S5-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company. (Not applicable during the Audit
period).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. Further, the Company is required to
appoint 2 (Independent Directors) pursuant to Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, of
which, the Company has already appointed 1 (One) Independent Director and further in the
process of identification and appointment of another Independent Director,

I FURTHER REPORT THAT the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws,
like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been
subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

IFURTHER REPORT THAT:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-
Executive Directors, Independent Director and Woman Independent Director except as
mentioned above. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members® views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

1 FURTHER REPORT THAT there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to moniter and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I FURTHER REPORT THAT during the audit period, the Company had the following events
which had bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards etc:

1. The Company had obtained the approval of Board of Directors and recommended to the

Shareholders of the Company for their approval, the enhancement of the borrowing limit
from Rs. 300 Crores to Rs. 500 Crores.

R. Balasuhramanian Place: Chennai
Practising Company Secretary Date: 25.04.2023
FCS No. 16011 CP No. 11979

UDIN: F010011E000188530

PR No. 2641/2022

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and
forms an integral part of this report.



To,

“Annexure A”

The Members,

HTL Limited,

CIN: U93090TN1960PL.C004355
G.S.T. Road, Guindy,

Chennai - 600032

I report that:

L.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on
my audit.

2. 1have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 1
believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events ete.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

R. Balasubramanian Place: Chennai
Practising Company Secretary Date: 25.04.2023

FCS No. 10011, CP No. 11979
UDIN: F010011E000188530
PR No. 2641/2022



Annexure IV to the Directors’ Report

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ

WITH COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
315T MARCH, 2023.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

(A)

(B)

M

(i)

(ii)

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

The Company’s operation involves low energy consumption. Nevertheless,
energy conservation measures have already been taken wherever possible.
Efforts to conserve and optimise the use of energy through improved
operational methods and other means will continue.

The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternative sources of
Energy:

The Company has purchased wind power from a private Generator, M/s. NSL
Wind Power Company (Phoolwadi) Private Limited, Hyderabad during the
previous year as per the guidelines prescribed by TANGEDCO for its both
Guindy and Hosur Plants.

The Company is also exploring the other alternative source of energy i.e.
Solar.

The capital investment on energy conservation equipments: NIL

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

)

(ii)

(iii)

The efforts made by the Company towards technology absorption:
The technology of the products has been absorbed substantially during the
year under review.,

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution:

As a result of technology absorption, Company has been able to reduce
product cost.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year), the following
information may be furnished: NIL

(a)  The details of Technology Imported . Not Applicable
(b)  The year of Import . Not Applicable
(c)  Whether the technology been fully absorbed  :  Not Applicable

(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption : Not Applicable
has not taken place and the reasons thereof and
future plans of action



(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development (R&D): Nil
(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Financial Financial
Year Year ended
ended 31.03.2022

31.03,2023

Foreign  exchange earned in terms of actual 3000.77 882.38

inflows.

Foreign exchange outge in terms of actual  15588.03 14216.18

outflows.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: New Delhi R. M. Kastia K. C. Jani
Date : 28.04.2023 Director Director

DIN: 00053059 DIN: 02535299



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of HTL Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of HTL Limited (*‘the Company™),
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year

then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally aceepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and

profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilted our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Fthics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of

our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

S.No | Key Audit Matters Response to Key Audit Matters
1. Provision of Interest on Government of India | Principal Audit Procedures

(GOI) Loan

Pending the response to the company’s letter to | Obtained details of correspondence with

GOI and also confirmation of balance from GOI, | Government of India for settlement of

provision of interest on GOI loan has been made | claim. Verified the reconciliation statement

after adjustment of claim recoverable from | prepared by the management after

BSNL. adjustment of claim recoverable from
BSNL against the interest portion of the

As on 31* March 2023, total loan outstanding is outstanding loan from GOI. Discussion

Rs. 473.00 Lacs and Interest Accrued is Rs. | with the management on the current status

2347.13 Lacs. on the loan reconciliation.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information, The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other

information comprising the above documents is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standatone financial statements or cur knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information comprising the above documents, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and take necessary actions as per applicable laws and regulations.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant o the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do se.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will abways detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.



* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We deseribe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare ¢ircumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the “Annexure-A” a statement on the maitters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

B. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalene financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(D With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”.
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(2) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the company has paid/provided
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V of the Act.

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Note No 39 of the financial statements;

if) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
confracts;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
(M

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

() The Company has not paid or proposed any dividend during the year,

(k) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (A ccounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable
to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March
31, 2023.

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016520N

Nishant Bhansali

Partner

Membership No: 532900

UDIN: 23532900BGVCKAS35753

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 28, 2023



ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in “Paragraph-A™ under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® section of
our report to the Members of HTL Limited of even date)

L
(&)

(b)

(©)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situations of its Property Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its Intangible
Assets.

Property, Plant and equipment of the company are physically verified according to a phased
program of coverage which, in our opinion, is reasonable. Pursuant to the program, physical
verification of the Property, Plant and equipment was carried out during the year by the
management and 1o material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the title deeds of all immovable

properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company except the
following:

Whether ;
- Gross promoter Feriog helds
Deseription : Held in e D indicate Reason for not being held
Carrying director or their .
of Property g name of : range, where | in name of the company
Value relative or TP
employee
30.99 acres Re. 1 Government No 52 Years Pattas and Encumbrance
of Assigned of Certificate are available in
land at Tamilnadu the name of Company and
Guindy the process of getting clear
Industrial titte is in process. The
Area, Assigned land is subject to
Chennai dispute pending at Madras
High Court. Refer Note 44
to the Financial Statement.
(d) The company has not revalued its Property Plant and Equipment or Intangible Assets or both

(e)

(@)

(b)

during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

As per the information and explanation given to us, the Inventories, except for stocks lying with
certain third parties from whom confirmations have been obtained for stocks held as at the year
end, have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the year.
In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate. In our opinion, the discrepancies noticed on physical verification were less than

10% in aggregate for each class of inventory and the same have been properly dealt with in the
books of accounts.

The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. As per the information and
explanation given to us and represented by the management in Note 23.2 of the financial
statement, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with banks are in agreement
with the books of accounts of the Company.
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According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not made investments
in or provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in nature of loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
provision of clause 3(iii) are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, complied with the provisions of Section 183
and 186 of the Companies Act.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits, within the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, and the provisions of Section
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence the provisions of
clause 3(v) are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act,2013 for the products of the company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the
Company is generally regular in depositing, with the appropriate authorities, undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, goods and
service tax, custom duty, cess and other material statutory dues wherever applicable. According
to information and explanation given to us, and as per the records examined by us, no
undisputed arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at 31 March, 2023 from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as certified by the management,
dues outstanding of income-tax on account of any dispute is as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amount in Period to which the | Forum where dispute is
Statute dues Rs. amount relates pending
Jhe AIZE‘;‘;;IT“ Income Tax | 4731 Lacs AY 2014-15 Pending with CIT (A)

According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no transaction which was not
recorded in the books of account and which has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) According to our audit procedures and the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not re-paid the loans and interest due thereon to Government of India (GOI). The
period and outstanding amount as on balance sheet date i.e. 318 March, 2023 are as follows:

Nature of pAmS Z Amount pot baid \i_Vhf:ther Delay or unpaid
hotrowin of on due date pringcipal or SRS Remarks
= Q ; g lender | (Amount. in Lacs) interest
473.00 | Principal More than 8 year | As referred in Note 46 of
1,523.99 More than § year | the Financial Statement,
352.94 6-8 Year loan & interest due
Loans GOI 150.21 3-6 Year thereon are subject to
Interest L
84 .88 2-3 Year reconciliations and
117.55 1-2 Year interest reduction
117.55 0-1 Year proposal with DoT.
Total 2820.12

{(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not been declared as willfu! defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or any other lender.
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(¢) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the terms loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the fund raised on short term basis have not been utilized for the long term purposes.

(¢) In our opinion, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and

accordingly the requirements under paragraph 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) are not applicable to the
company.

(a) Based on our examinations of the records and information and explanations given to us, the

company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer (IPOY or further public offer
(FPO) (including debt instruments).

(b) Based on our examinations of the records and information and explanations given to us, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures during the year.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations

given to us, no fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

{b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination, there
were no whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the Company;

The Company is not a Nidhi company, hence the provisions of clause 3(xii) are not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of Companies Act 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion, the company has adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of the business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company

during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the books of accounts verified by us,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with
him and hence the provision of clause 3(xv) are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve

Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (¢} of the Order is not
applicable.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.
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18.

19.

20.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the.Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilitics, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due.

(a} There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Sociai Responsibitity (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specitied in Schedule VII to the Companies Act
in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act,
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) Inrespect of ongoing projects, the company has transferred unspent amount for the year ended
March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023 to a special account, within a period of thirty days from
the end of the respective financial year in compliance with section 135(6) of the said Act.

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016520N

Nishant Bhansali

Partner

Membership No: 532900

UDIN: 23532900BGVCKAS5753

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 28, 2023



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HTL LIMITED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2023.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

TO THE MEMBERS OF HTL LIMITED

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HTL LIMITED (“the

Company™) as of March, 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on Audit of Internal financial
control over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls aver financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on audit of
Internal financial controls over financial reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the standards on auditing
as specified under Section 143 (10) of the companies act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the guidance note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate Internal financial controis over financial reporting were established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records, in reasonable detail, accurately and Tfairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
the generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contro}
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants _
Firm Registration No. 016520N

Nishant Bhansali

Partner

Membership No: 532900

UDIN: 23532900BGVCKAS5753

Place; New Delhi
Date: April 28, 2023



HTL Limited

(CIN: U93090TN1960PLC004355) >
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs)
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023
Asat As at
Assets Note No. March 31, March 31,
2023 2022
Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 15,514.70 12,475.37
(b} Capital work-in-progress 3 784.91 2,115.98
{c) Intangible assets (other than Goodwill) 6 92.05 59.90
(d) Intangible assets under development 7 i 18.36
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Others 8 251.42 422,67
{f) Other non-current assets 10 108.01 467.93
Total non-current assets 16,751.09 15,560.21
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 11 17,245.53 16,385.62
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 12 18.60 17.08
(i) Trade Receivables 13 18,149.69 17,217.76
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 84.34 63.83
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii} above 15 2,162.74 2,217.20
(v) Others 16 283.86 44790
(¢) Current Tax Assets (Net) 17 36.13 36.13
{d) Other current assets 18 1,010.62 947.01
Taotal current assets 38,991.51 37,334.53
Total Assets 55,742.60 52,894.74
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HTL Limited

(CIN: U93090TN1960PLC004355)
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs)
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023

e i Asat
Equity and Liabilities Note No. Ay s
R 5 : March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 19 1,500.00 1,500.00
(b} Other Equity 19 12,836.83 6,377.31
Totg*l Equity 14,336.83 7,877.31
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 5,127.42 5,042.98
(ii)y Others 21 7,200.00 7,200.00
(b) Provisions 22 220.39 139.18
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 9 329.74 371.61
Total non-current lLiabilities 12,877.55 12,753.77
Current Liabilities
() Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 23 11,663.70 11,632.78
(ii) Trade Payables
(a) Eota‘l outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 89120 1,352.61
enterprises; 24
(b} tota.l outstanding dues of .crednors other than micro 9.939.03 14,325.58
enterprises and small enterprises.
(iil) Other financial liabilities 25 3,600.52 3,756.97
(b) Other current liabilities 26 720.78 193.47
{c) Provisions 27 24.28 34.02
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 17 1,688.71 968.23
Total eurrent liabilities : 28,528.22 32,263.66
Total Liabilities 41,405.77 45,017.43
Total equity and liabilities 55,742.60 52,894.74
The Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 016520N R. M.KASTIA K.C. JANI
Director Director

NISHANT BHANSALI
Partner
M.No.: 532900

New Delhi, 28th April 2023

DIN: 00053059

8. NARAYANAN
Company Secretary

M.No ACS5772

New Delhi, 28th April 2023

DIN: 02535299

C D PONNAPFPA

Chief Financial Officer
PAN: ACZPP1337Q




HTL Limited

(CIN: U93090TN1960PLC004355)
(All amounts are in Rs, Lakhs)
Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, March 31,
2023 2022
I. (INCOME
Revenue from operations 28 1,26,441.06 1,01,004.70
Other Income 29 431.27 276.16
Total Income (T} 1,26,872.33 1,01,280.86
II. |[EXPENSE
Cost of Material Consumed 30 92,723.53 76,771,70
Other Direct cost 31 1,272.62 1,023.34
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 5,592.02 4,060.10
giiig_:_iﬁ E'1lrc11\ff;enf:01'1es of finished goods, work-in-progress and 32 14873 (1,510.11)
Employee benefits expense 33 5,750.40 4,546,12
Finance Costs 34 3,603.69 3,444 .43
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 18&6 2,511.34 2,045.99
Other Expenses as 6,066.79 3.612.18
‘Total Expenses ¢11) 1,17,869.12 93,993.75
111 |Profit / (less) before exceptional items and income tax (1-11) 9,003.21 7,287.11
IV |Exceptional item (refer note 53) - 637.67
Y [Profit/ (L.oss) before tax (I1I - TV) 9,003.21 6,649.44
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HTL Limited

(CIN: U93090TN1960PLC004355)
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs)

Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

j = For the year ended | For the year érded
Particulars Note No. March 31, March 31,
2023 2022
V1 | Tax expenses
Current tax 2,537.76 1,735.99
Deferred Tax (29.84) (20.29)
2,507.92 1,715.70
VII [Profit for the year (V-VI) 6,495.29 4,933.74
VIII|Other Comprehensive Income / (loss)
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of defined benefit plans; (47.80) (22.22)
(ii) Income tax on above item; 12.03 5.59
Othef comprehensive income for the year (VIIT) (35.77) (16.63)
IX |Total'comprehiensive income for the year (VII+VIIT) 6,459.52 4,917.11
Earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the
Company during the year
Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 36 433.02 328.92
Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) 36 433.02 328.92
The Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 016520N
R. MLKXASTIA K.C. JANI
Director Director

NISHANT BHANSALI
Partner
M.No.: 532900

New Delhi, 28th April 2023

DIN: 00053059

S.NARAYANAN
Company Secretary

DIN: 02535299

C D PONNAPPA

Chief Financial Officer

M.No ACS5772
New Delhi, 28th April 2023

PAN: ACZPP1337Q



HTL Limited

=
(CIN: U93090TN1960PLC004355) Ny
(All amounts are in Rs. Lalkhs)
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2023
Rl For the year ended For the year ended
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2622
I. |Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit Before Tax 9,003.21 6,049.44
Adjustments for
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 2,511,34 2,045.99
Bad debts, Loans and Advances, other balances written off (net) 319.26 40.84
Loss on Sales/Discard of Property, Plant and Equipment 22.03 10.51
Share based payment (refer nete no. 48) - {25.55)
Finance costs 3,603.69 344543
Interest Income {87.67) (93.81)
Exchange Fluctuation Income {Net} 98.10 295.03
15,469.96 12,366.88
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (1,251.19) 1,280.10
{(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (85991 (3.613.32)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (4,946.06) {2,089.89)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets 155.57 {78.50)
(Increase)/Decrease in other Non-current assets §71.25 {156.83)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets (9.15) (1,339.36}
Increase/(Decrease) in other Non-current liabilities 81.21 (266.15)
Increase/(Decrease) in other current habalities 1,110.82 (6131
Cash generated from operations 9,922.50 6,041.62
Income taxes (paid)/refund (1,817.28) (1,207.25)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 8,105.22 4,834.37
I |Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment including CWIP & Capital (4,131.10) (4.513.50)
Advances
Payment for Intangible Assets (other than Goodwill} including CWIP (31.16) (12.80)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - 12.17
Payments for purchase of investments {1.52) -
Interest received 96.13 71.62
Net cash ontflow from investing activities (4,067.65) {4,442.51)
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HTL Limited
(CIN: U93090TN1960PLC004355)
(ATl amounts are in Rs, Lakhs)
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2023

T s For the year endéd Tor the year endéd
Particulars f Fid
: Mar 31, 2023 Mareh.31, 2022

III |Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds of borrowings 3,810.67 3,945.89

{Repayment) of borrowings (3,695.31) (1,027.73)

[nterest paid (4,134.44) (3,273.88)

Net.cash inflow (outflow) frowm financing activities . {4,019.08) (355.72)
IV |Netincrease (decrase) in cash and ‘eash equivalents 18.52 36.15
V1 |Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 65.83 29.68
VII [Cash snd cashi équivalenifs-ak end of the year 84.35 65.83

Notes:

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015.

2 Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow.
3  Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 14) comprise of the following

The Statement of Cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set-cut in the Ind AS - 7 "Statement of Cash Flow" as specified in the

Cash on Hand 0.74 1.02
Balance with Banks * 83.60 64.81
* Rs.75.42 Lakhs { Previous year Rs.40.63 Lakhs) has restricted use.
Balances per statement of cash flows 84.34 65.83
The Accompanying notes form an integral past of the financial statement.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Beard
For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 016520N
R. MLKASTIA K.C. JANI
Director Director

DIN: 00053039

NISHANT BHANSALI
Partner - 5. NARAYANAN
M.No.: 532900 Company Secretary

M.No ACS5772
New Delhi, 28th April 2023 New Dethi, 28th April 2023

DIN: 02535299

C D PONNAPPA
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: ACZPP1337Q
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HTL Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information
HTL Limited (“the Company”) was a wholly owned undertaking of Government of India (‘GOI’) under
the Department of Telecommunications (*DOT?) till 16% October’2001 when the Government divested
74 % of its shareholding in the Company as part of its divestment program, including transfer of
management control, to HFCL Limited, which is now the Holding Company. From 2015-16, the
Company has started manufacturing Optical Fibre Cables and Passive Connectivity Solution.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 28" April
2023.

2. Application of new and revised Ind -AS
All the Indian Accounting Standards issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable have been considered in preparing these financial
statements,

Recent accounting pronouncements:-

The MCA has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 on

March 31, 2023, whereby the amendments to various Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) has been

made applicable with effect from April 1, 2023 onwards. Amended requirements as per these rules in

relation to various Standards are as follows:

¢ Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements: The amendments require companies to disclose
their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The Company
has evaluated the requirements of the amendment and its impact on Financial Statements is not
likely to be material,

* Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: The definition of a
change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. The
amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates.
The Company has evaluated the requirements of the amendment and there is no impact on its
Financial Statements,

* Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes: The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption so
that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. The Company has evaluated the requirements of the amendment
and there is no impact on its Financial Statements.

Amendments to other Indian Accounting Standards viz. Ind AS 101- First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards, Ind AS 102 — Share Based Payments, Ind AS 103- Business Combinations,
Ind AS 107- Financial Instruments - Disclosures, Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, and Ind AS
34 Interim Financial Reporting are either consequential to above amendments or clerical in nature.

The Company has evaluated the requirements of the amendments and there is no impact on its Financial
Statements.

3. Significant accounting policies

3.1. Basis of preparation

3.1.1. Compliance with Ind AS
All the Indian Accounting Standards issued under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and

notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended} till the financial statements are approved have been considered
in preparation of these Financial Statements.



HTL Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs, Lakh unless otherwise stated)

3.1.2. Historical Cost Convention
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the

followings:
e  certain financial assets and liabilities and contingent consideration that is measured at
fair value;

» assets held for sale measured at fair value less cost to sell;
* defined benefit plans plan assets measured at fair value; and

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services. The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees Lakhs except
where otherwise stated.

3.1.3. Use of Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement

principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and judgements
that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities
as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the
periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are
affected

3.2. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

a} EHxpected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or
b} Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or
¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period other than for (a)
above, or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used te settle 2 liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or
¢) ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period other than for (a)
above, or
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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HTL Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated)

3.3. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels as
follows:

s Level | — Quoted (unadjusted)
This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

o Level2
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 2 inputs include the following:
a) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.
b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets or Habilities In markets that are not active,
¢} inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.
d) Market — corroborated inputs.
e Level3
They are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable
related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants. Fair values are
determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported
by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on
available market data.

3.4. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

3.5. Property Plant and Equipment
Freehold Land is carried at the actual cost. All other items of PPE are stated at actual cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Actual cost is inclusive of freight, installation cost,
duties, taxes and other incidental expenses for bringing the asset to its working conditions for its intended



HTL Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated)

use (net of eligible input taxes) and any cost directly attributable to bring the asset into the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Management.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting
date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are
disclosed under capital advances and capital work-in-progress (CWIP) respectively.

Significant Parts of an item of PPE (including major inspections) having different useful lives & material
value or other factors are accounted for as separate components. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation of these PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Property, Plant
and Equipment (PPE) and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified as held for
sale.

Depreciation is provided for on Buildings (including buildings taken on lease) and Plant & Machinery
on straight line method and on other PPE on written down value method on the basis of useful life. On
assets acquired on lease (including improvements to the leasehold premises), amortization has been
provided for on Straight Line Method over the primary period of lease.

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and if necessary, changes
in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account of capital improvement or other
factors is provided for prospectively over the remaining useful life.

The useful life of property, plant and equipment are as follows:-

A BRI i b [Useful L0 0 T o i
Freehold Buildings* Factory Building : 20 years
Staff Quarters : 40 years
Leasehold Improvements Over the period of lease
Plant & Machinery 7.5- 15 Years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Electrical Installations 10 years
Computers 3 — 6 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Vehicles 8 years

*For these classes of assets based on internal assessment and technical evaluation, the management
believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the Management
expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of Companies Act 2013.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or over the shorter of the assets useful life and the lease term if there is an uncertainty
that the company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

6l
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3.6. Intangible Assets

(i) Recognition of intangible assets

a.

Internally Generated Assets

Intangible assets that are acquired subsequent to transition date are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible
asset arising from development activity is recognised at cost on demonstration of its technical
feasibility, the intention and ability of the Company to complete, use or sell it, only if] it is
probable that the asset would generate future economic benefit and to use or sell of the asset,
adequate resources to complete the development are available and the expenditure attributable
to the said assets during its development can be measured reliably.

Computer software

Purchase of computer software used for the purpose of operations is capitalized. However, any
expenses on software support, maintenance, upgrade etc. payable periodically is charged to the
Statement of Profit & Loss.

(ii) De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected

from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

(iii) Amortisation periods and methods

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over a period ranging between 2-5 years
which equates its economic useful life.

3.7.  Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liab

3.

ility or equity instrument of another entity.

7.1.  Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All

financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
are measured at transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame are recognized on the trade date, i.e.. the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories
based on business model of the entity:
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o Debt instruments at amortized cost

o Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

o Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

o  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified froin the equity to P&L., Interest earned whilst kolding FYTOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrament at FVTPL

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL,

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments, the Company may make an
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irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value.

The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification is made
on initial recognition and is irrevocable

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. This amount is not recycled from OCI
to P & L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are immediately recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at Tair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is de-recognized only when

o The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

o retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has lransferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially ali
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-
recognized.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Group has not
retained control of the financial asset. Where the company retains controt of the financial asset, the
asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing invelvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance.
In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has used a practical
expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision
matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for
forward looking information. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected
credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L):

3.7.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial iiability and
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an equity instrument,

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial
recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with
all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end
of financial period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted ‘for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the
liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires.

3.8. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amousnt is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and'is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
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specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent marlket transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss.

A previously recognized impairment loss {except for goodwill) is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognized. The reversal is limited to the carrying amount of the asset.

3.9. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each preduct to its present location and conditions are accounted for as
follows:

0 Raw materials: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on Weighted Average Cost Method.

U Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manutfacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on Standard Cost method,

O Traded goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

O Contract Work in Progress : It is valued at cost
[0 Loose Tools (Consumables) —[t is valued at cost after write off at 27.82%

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.10. Revenue recognition

[1 Sale of Goods
The company recognizes revenue in accordance with Ind- AS 115, Revenue is recognized upon
transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which may also refer as unbilled
revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which may
also refer to as unearned revenues).

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and loss.

(0 Interest income
Interest income on deposits with banlks is recognised at effective interest rate applicable.
Interest income from other financial assets is recognised at the effective interest rate method on
initial recognition.

O Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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| Rental income
Rental income arising tfrom operating leases or on investment properties is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in other non-operating income in the
statement of profit and loss.

[ Insurance Claims
Insurance claims are accounted for as and when admitted by the concerned authority.

3.11, Excise and custom duty

Excise duty payable on production is accounted for on accrual basis. Provision is made in the
books of accounts for customs duty on imported items on arrival and lying in bonded warehouse
and awaiting clearance.

3.12. Leases

As a lessee
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A confract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:
i. the contract involves the use of an identified asset
ii.  the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through
the period of the lease and
fi. the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

Based on the accounting policy applied, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the contract for all leases conveying the right to contro! the use
of an identified assets, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and
low value leases. For these shorl-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus

any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of
the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless
the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such

cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option,
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Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

As a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract
is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sublease separately, The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-
of-use asset arising {rom the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

3.13. Foreign currency transactions
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the
economic environment in which it operates.

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (are recognized at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign
currency at the year end are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting
date.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference between the date of transaction and on
settlement or on translation is recognized in the profit and loss account as income or expense.

Non monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation difference on such assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of fair value gain or loss.

3.14. Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits:-
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.
Long-Term employee benefits
Compensated expenses which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of period
in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.
Post-employment obligations

i.  Defined contribution plans

Provident Fund and employees’ state insurance schemes



HTL Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated)

il

iil.

iv.

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund,
which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employes and the employer make monthly
contributions to the plan at a predetermined rate (presently 12%) of the employees’ basic
salary. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the
Government of India. In addition, some employees of the Company are covered under the
employees’ state insurance schemes, which are also defined contribution schemes recognized
and administered by the Government of India-

The Company’s contributions to both these schemes are expensed in the Statement of Profit

and Loss. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly
contributions.

Defined benefit Gratuity plan

The Company provides for gratuity obligations through a defined benefit retirement plan (the
‘Gratuity Plan’) covering all employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payinent to
vested employees at retirement or termination of employment based on the respective
employee salary and years of employment with the Company. The Company provides for the
Gratuity Plan based on actuarial vatuations in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard
19 (revised), “Employee Benefits®. The Company makes periodic contributions te the HDFC
Standard Life Insurance Company Ltd for the Gratuity Plan in respect of employees. The
present value of obligation under gratuity is determined based on actuarial valuation using
Project Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up
the final obligation.

Defined retirement benefit plans comprising of gratuity, un-availed leave, post-retirement
medical benefits and other terminal benefits, are recognized based on the present value of
defined benefit obligation which is computed using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period, These are
accounted either as current employee cost or included in cost of assets as parmitted.

Other Long Term Employee Benefits
Leave Encashment

Other long term employee benefit comprises of leave encashment towards un-availed earned
leave. These are recognized as per the actuarial valuation as per the Projected Unit Credit
Method carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.

Re-measurements of leave encashment towards un-availed leave are recogaized in the
Statement of profit and loss.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in OCI as and when incurred.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest as defined
above),are recognized in other comprehensive income except those included in cost of

assets as permitted in the period in which they occur and are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss.
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3.15.

3.16.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Financial Statements represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Share-based compensation

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is
recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the
employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is
based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting
conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based
on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the

vesting date.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

3.17. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

3.18.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation,

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation, When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an
infiow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Company will comply with all stipulated conditions. Government grants
relating to income are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other
operating income. Grants related to assets are reduced from the carrying amount of the asset. Such
grants are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the useful life of the related
depreciable asset by way of reduced depreciation charge.
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3.19. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.20. GST Credit

The GST credit available on purchase of raw materials, other eligible inputs and capital goods is
adjusted against taxes payable. The unadjusted GST/CENVAT credit is shown under the head
“Other Current Assets”.

3.21. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by
dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.22. Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, ifany.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to siteations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.

1t establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Financial
Statement. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or lizbility in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of eacl: reporting period and
are recognized only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint
arrangements where the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the (emporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foresecable future.

Deferred tax assets are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is
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not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not
be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and labilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Dividend distribution tax paid on the dividends is recognized consistently with the presentation of
the transaction that creates the income tax consequence.

3.23. Exceptional Items
Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from

ordinary activities, which are non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate
disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance of the Company.
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HTL Limited
{All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs)

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Non-Current Financial Assets - Others

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Unsecured, considered Good

Fixed Depaosits with Bank (Maturity more than 12 months)* 251.42 422.67
‘Fatal 251.42 422.67
*Above fixed deposit held as margin money/securities with banks.
Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities}
[ Particulaes- Dermf:d ]%mem Prupcrl;j, piashand Others Total
Obligations Equipment
As at 1 April, 2021 11274 (510.24) - (397.50)
(Changed}/Credited:
- to Statement of profit and loss (76.84) 97.14 - 2030
- 1 other comprehensive income 5.59 S - 5.59
As at 31 March, 2022 41,49 (413,10 - (371.61)
{Changed)/Credited:
- to Statement of profit and loss 596 (82.08) 105.96 29.84
- fo other comprehersive income 12.03 - - 12,03
Asat 31 March, 2023 59.48 (495.18) 105.96 329,74)
Other non-current assets
Particulars ot st
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good
Capital Advances 108.01 407.93
Total 108.01 467.93
Inventories (at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower)
Particulars Asal Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Inventories (As certified and valued by the manngement)
Raw Material 9,335.10 8,152 56|
Raw Material-In transit 1,037.84 1,393.61
10,572.94 9,546.17
Work-in-progress 2,962.47 2,772.84
Finished goods 2,696.71 3,261.66
Stock-in-trade Goods 136 81 119.22
Stores & Spares 82717 668.87
Loose tools 49.43 2586
Total 17,245.53 16,385.62
Current Financial Assefs - Tnvesiments
Particulars el Lax:
. March 31, 2923 Marceh 31, 2022
Unquoted Investments
Invesiments in Equity instrument 18.60 17.08
Total 18.60 17.08
12.1 Details of Current Financial Assets - [nvestments
N As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Financial assets measured at FYTOCL
Unquoted Equity Shares {Fully Paid up}
NSL Wind Power Company (Pheolwadi) Private Limited - FV Rs 10/- per share 1,86,000 18.60 1,70,800 17.08
Totgl Current Financial Invesiments 18.60 17.08
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HTL Limited
{All amounnts are in Rs. Lakhs)

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Current Financial Asseis - Trade Receivables

AR at Ag al
Factciles Marcfl\;l, 2023 March 311?, 2022
Trade Recgivables - Considéred Good Unsecured 18,149.69 17,217.76
Less: Expected Credit Loss allowance d =
Tatal 18,149.69 17,21°%.76

13.1. Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymend
Particulars Not Due L‘;\s;og:?: S SIS M:::;s il 1-2 years 2-3years Mu;i::l:n’ii Total

As at March 31, 2023

(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 11,590.48 6,094 .80 57.85 367.50 17.73 10.93 18,139.68
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - - 10.01 10,01
Total 11,590.48 6,094.80 57.8% 367.90 17.73 20,94 18,149.69
As at March 31, 2022

{i} Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 16,860.31 367696 2,170.11 479.79 10.62 9.95 17,207.75
{ii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - - 10.01 10.01
Total 10,860.31 3,676.96 2,170.11 479.79 10.63 19.97 1731746

13.2 The credit period towards trade receivables generally ranges between 0 1o 180 days. General payment terms includes process time with the respective customers between 30 to 60 days and
certain retention money within 130 Days.

13.3 In determining the allowance for trade receivables the Company has used practical expedients based on financial condition of the customers, ageing of the customer receivables and over-
dues, availability of collaterals and histerical experience of collections from customers, The concentration of risk with respect to trade recsivables is reasonably low as most of the customers are

14

15

16

17

18

Govemnment and large Corporate organisations though there may be normai delays in collections

13.4 Above balance of frade receivables include recoverable from related party

Current Financial Assets - Cash & cash equivalents

Farfitnlars oot A
s 5 March 31, 2023 Mnrch 31, 2022
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with banks,;
- in current account 8.13 24.18
- in CSR Unspent account * 75.42 40.63
Cash on hand; 0.74 1.02
[Tl i 34.34 65.83
* Rs.75.42 Lakhs ( Previous year Rs.40.63 Lakhs) has restricted usc.
Current Financial Assets - Other Bank Balances
sy o ; : As at As at
Pa{lmur"s‘ March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fixed Deposits with Bank
N 2,162, 2
(Maturity more than 3 Months but less than 12 menths) * \6274 221720
Tota] i g 2,162,74 2,217.20
*Above fixed deposit held a3 margin money/securities with banks.
Current Financial Assets -Other Assets
o t As at Asat
Partiaulse ¥ March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Unsecured, Considered good
A} Advances other than capital advances;
a.) Security Deposits 246.69 252 26
b.) Other Advances - 150.00
B) Interest Receivables 3717 45.64
[ Toiil il 283.46 447.90

Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

=i A Asat As.at
ptasi il ; March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Tax Assets
Advance Income Tax / TDS (net of provisions) 36.13 36.13
Cuorrent Tax Liabitities
income Tax Provisions (net of Advance Tax & TDS/TCS) (1,688.71) (968.23)
Tatal Vi i {1,652.58) {932.10)
Other Current Assets

Parficulars

As at
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

Unsecured, Considered good

Advances Recoverable in ¢cash or in kind 4.53 262
Advances to Vendors 442.10 387.95
Indirect Tax Recoverable 336.86 298.02
Prepaid Expenses 215,18 20938
Export [ncentive Receivable 11.95 39.04
Total 1,010.62 947.01
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HTL Limited
{All amownts are in Rs. Lakhs)

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{a) Equity Share Capital

{i) Authorized Share Capital

Particulars No of Shares Amoant
Asat 1 April, 2021 20,00,000 2,(00.00
Increase during the year 3 -
As at 31 March, 2022 20,040,040 2,000.00
Increass during the year - p
As at 31 March, 2023 20,00,00¢ 2,000,800
(i) Shares issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

Particulays Ko ol shares Amount
As at 1 April, 2021 15,00,000 1,500,00
Add: Shares issued during the year S =
As at 31 March, 2022 13,00,0060 1.500.00
Add: Shares issued during the year - E
As at 31 March, 2023 15,00,000 1,500.00

{ti) 11,10,000 {Previous year-11,10,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each are fully paid up, are held by the Holding Company, HFCL Limited

{iv) Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of Equity Shures

Name: of Sharcholder

As at March 31, 2023
No. of share held

As at March 31, 2022
No. of share held

HFCL Limited 11,09,997 11,09,997
% of Holding 74.00% 74.00%
Manoj Baid* 1 1
Baburaj Eradath* 1 1
Tarun Kalra* 1 1
Govt. of India represented by President of India 3,89,996 3,89,996
% of Holding 26.00% 26.00%
Shri Shambhu Kumar Mahto, DDG (PHP), DeT 2 2

Shri R.M Agarwal, DDG (3U), DoT.

Shri Rajeev Kumar Srivastava, Director (TPF), DT

1
§

1
i

{v} Shareholding of Promoters

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % of change during the
S.No. Promater Nane No. of Shares | % of Total Shares year
1 HFCL Limited 3,849,996
2 | Mangj Baid* 1
il 74.00% 1%
3 | Babura) Eradath* 1
4 | Tarun Kalra* 1
* The Beneficial 1nterest is held by HFCL Limited, Holding Company
(b) Other Equity
Baztiotars Mm'c:;i‘,tlﬂzil Mnrc;};; ,[ 2022
(1) Capital Reserve .00 0.00
(i) Retained Earnings 12,954.65 645936
(i) Other Comprehensive Income -Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans (142.46) (106.69)
(iv) Share based paymeni 1o employees * 24.64 24 .64
Total 12,836.83 6,371,31

*Share based Payment related to ESOPs and RSU's granied by the holding company to the employees of HTL.

{i) Capital Reserve *

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 Asat March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 0.00 .00
Increase during the year - =
Decrease during the year = -
Closing Balance 0.00 0.00

* Capiial Reserve of Re. 1/~ represents amount paid for land acquired free of cost from Tamilnadu Stale Government

{ii) Retained Earnings

Partigulars As at March 3, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Opening Balance 6,459.36 1,501 .16
Add; Net profit for the vear 6,495 29 4,933.74
Add: Transferred from Share based payment reserve - 24.46
Closing Balance 12,954.65 6,439.36
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HTL Limited
{All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs)

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(iii) Other Comprehensive Income -Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans

Pnrtmu]m As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Opening Balance (106.69) (90.06)
Increase during the year - -
Decrease during the year (35.77) (16.63)
Closing Balande {142.46) (106.69)

(iv) Skare based payment to Employees

Barticulars - o As nt March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 2464 74.65
Increase during the year - -
Decrease during the year = (25.55)
Transferred to Retained Earnings - (24.46)
Closing Belancs 24.64 24,64
Non-Current Financial Linbilities - Borrowings
g As at As at

Partoulee Mareh 31,2023 March 31,2022
Secured

Term Loans from Banks* 2,677.42 2,592.98
Unsecured

Loan from related party (refer note 47) 2,450.00 245000
Total R P s 5 5,127.42 5,042.98

* Net off of Rs, 25.34 Lakhs (Previous year Rs, 2044 Lakhs) as finance charges,

20.1 Repayment Schedule for Term Loan from Bank ss on 31.03.2023

" Period of dile for repiyment

Term Lodn 1

Térm Loan 2

Term Loan 3

Qutstanding amount 892.60 1,700.20 2,210.18
Repayment Due
2023-24 593.19 856.00 876.37
2024-25 299.41 84420 679.55
2025-26 - - 682.95
2026-27 - - 171.31
i 892.60 1,700.20 2,210.18
20.2 Term Loan of Rs. 892.60 Lakhs (Previcus year Rs.1478.87 Lakhs) from one of the bank,
20.3 Term Loan of Rs. 1700.38 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.2556.38 Lakhs) from one of the bank
20.4 Term Loan of Rs, 2210.17 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. NIL) fram one of the bank
20.5.The above said bank loans are secured by pari- passu charge basis:
1.} All Inmovable and Moveable Property Plant and Equipment {both present and future)
2.} Registered Morigage of 2.5 acres Industrial land parcel in Guindy, Chennai.
3.} All current assets and Cash flows. (both present & firture)
4) Corporate Guarantee of HFCL Limited (Holding Company) & M/s MN Ventures Private Lintited,
5.) Personal Guarantee of the Chairman of the Company
6.)Agreement to Pledge of 23,90% shareholding of HTL Limited by HFCL Limited (Holding Company)
Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Other Liabilities
. As at As at
Factiolana e € March 31, 2023 March 31, 2012
Advance from related parties (refer note 47) 7,200.00 7,200.00
Total ' . . 7:200.00 7,200.60
Non-Current Liabilities - Provisions
5 d Asat Asat’
Farticylaes March 31,2023 Murch 31, 2022
Provisions for Employee Benefits (refer note 38}
a) Provisions for Gratuity 150.54 o8 06
b} Provision for Leave Encashment 69.85 41,12
Toi; 220.39 139018 |
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HTL Limited
(All amounts are in Rs, Lakhs)

Nates forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Cureent Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

Particulars el Al
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Barrowings - Loans repayable on demands
Secured
(1) from Banks-Working Capital 4,973.07 5,005.96
(11} from Banks-Buyer's Credit - 1,378.94
(iii) Current Maturities of Long term Borrowings 2,12555 1,442.27
Unsecured
{1} Loans from Govt. of India * 473.00 624.20
{3i} from banks — Vendors bills discounting 4,092.08 2,681.41
(1ii) from other parties - 500,00
Total 11,663,70 11,632.78

*Also refer Note No. 45

23.1 Working Capital Loan of Rs.4973.06 Lakhs (previcus year Rs 500596 Lakhs) ang Buyer's Credit of Rs, Nif (Previous year Rs 1378.94 Lakhs) from Bank 1s secured against the fallowing

an pari-passu charge basis:

1.) All Immevable and Moveable Property Plant and Equipment {PPE} of HTL Limited {both present and future)

2.) Registered Mortgage of 2.5 acres Industrial land parcel in Guindy, Chennai.

3.) All current assets and Cash Flows {both present & future)
4) Corporate Guarantee of HFCL Limited (Holding Company) & M/s MN Venwres Private Limied.

5.) Personal Guarantee of the Chairman of the Company

6. )Apreement to Pledge of 23.90% shareholding of HTL Limited by HFCL Limited
23,2 Quarterly Retums/Statements of Current Asset filled by the company with Banks are in aggreement with the books of aceounts.

Current Financinl Liabilities - Trade Payables

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

Trade Paysbles - Undisputed
Due te Micro and Small Enterprises

891.20 1,352.41

Others 9,939.03 14,325.58
Total 10,830.23 15,678.19
24,1 Ageing details of Trade payables:

Quitstanding for following perinds from due date of payment T
g Less than 1
Partieulars Mot Due Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Morethan 3 years Total

As at March 31,2023 |
(i) MSME 781.34 108.83 0.04 1.00 - 29120
(ii) Others 7,446.05 2,408.97 13.53 707 3.32 $,539.03
Total 8,227.39 2,577.80 13.57 8.17 3.32 10,830.24
As af March 31,2022
(i) MSME 1,252.42 96.84 336 - - 1,352.61
{ii) Others 9,693.98 4,540.1% 73851 15.13 2.42 14,325.58
Total 10,946.40 4,637.03 77.21 15.13 2.42 15,678.19

24.2. There are no Disputed MSME or Disputed others trade payable balances as an 31st Mar 2023 and 3Tst March 2022

Current Financial Eiabilitics - Other Liabilities

. Asat Asat
earioaary March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
OCther Financial Liabilities
a) Interest acerued

-interest on Term loans 27.34 46.66

-Interest on Loans from Gowvt. of India”® 2,347.13 2,774.05

-lnterest on others - 84.51
b Creditors for Capital goods 74.53 341.28
o) Expenses Payable 80437 226,10
d) Other Employees Related liabities 34715 248.65
&)} Liabilify on account of outstanding forward contracts - 3572
Total 3,600.52 3,756.97
Other Carrent Liabilities

. Asat As ut
Eagicalars March 31, 2023 Mareh 31,2022
Advances from Customers; 157.28 68.3]
Security Deposit from Customers: 073 8.00
Statutory Liabilities payable 479.50 1292
Cither liabihties 77.27 4.24
Total 720,78 193.47
Current Liabilities - Provisions

q Asal As at
i Murch 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Provisions for Employee Benefits (refer note 38)
Provisions for Gratuity 2.09 10,42
Provisions for Leave Encashment [3.85 15.26

Provisions - Cthers 8.34 8.34
Total 24,28 34.02




o HTL Limited
% (All amounts are in Rs, Lakhs}

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

28 Revenue from operations

e For the year ended For the year-ended
1 = 2l s
v March 31, 2023 March 81, 2022
Sale of Products
-Manufacturing and trading activities 1,26,028.21 1,00,540.96
Sale of Services
-Service Income 196.23 222.45
Other Operating Revenues
-Scrap Sale 186.68 225.65
-Export Incentives 29,94 15.64
Total 1,26,441.06 1,01,004.70
29 Other Income
;'ag"t'icu & For the year ¢nded | For the year ended
S Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Other non-operating income
Interast Income 87.67 93.81
Reversal of Share Based payments to Employees expenses - 25.55
Rent Received 127.59 117.56
Exchange Fluctuation Income (Net) 98.10 -
Miscellaneous Income 117.91 39.24
Total 431.27 276.16
30 Cost of Material Consumed
; . Y For the ended | Forthe ended
Particiflars phtir! yegr pe
e 7 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 8,152.56 6,683.84
Add : Purchases during the year 04,106.07 78,240.42
1,02,258.63 84,924.26
Less: Closing Stock 9,535.10 8.152.56
| 92,723.53 76,771.70
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HTL Limited
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs)

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Other Direct Cost
For th ded For th
Particulars or the year ende or the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Consumption of stores and spares parts 1,247.16 1,011.52
Loose Tools written off 25.46 11.82
Total 1,272.62 1,023,34
Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in progress and stock-in trade-goods
Particulars : For the year ended For the year-ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Closing Stock
Finished Goods 2,696.71 3,261.66
Stock in Trade- Goods 136.81 110,22
Works in progress 2,962.47 2,772.84
5,795.99 6,144.72
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 3,261.66 3,182.50
Stock in Trade- Goods 110.22 87.13
Works in progress 2,772.84 1,364.99
6,144.72 4,634.62
Nét Changes (Opening -Closing) 348.73 (1,510.11)

Employee benefits expenses

For the year ended

SR For the year ended
Particulars :
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Salaries, bonus and allowances 5,522.38 4,322.92
Contribution to Provident and other funds 148.80 123,54
Staff welfare expenses 79.22 99.67
Share Based Payments to Employees (Refer note 48) - -

Total 5,730.40 4,546.12

Finance costs

For the year ended

* For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Bank Loan Interest 1,011.82 730.36
Interest on other loans 1,045.71 1,142.55
Other Interest 1,041,79 1,296.14
Bank Charges and loan processing charges 390.01 27538
Interest on Delayed tax payment 114.36 -
Tatzl 3,603.69 3,444.43
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(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs)

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31,2023

Other expenses

x For the year ended For the year enided
Particulars : g :
_____ March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Rates and Taxes 86.17 67.14
Auditors' Remuneration

Audit Fee 15.00 12.00

Tax Audit Fee 4.00 4.00

Other Services 3.19 2.12

Out of pocket expenses 0.21 -
Legal and Professional Charges 278.15 343.74
Loss on Sate of Property, Plant and Equipment 22.03 10.51
Communication Expenses 47.89 30.69
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 215.68 162.95
Power and Fuel & Water Charges 1,846.44 1,416.04
Repairs and Maintenance 216.53 147.59
Insurance Expenses 144.46 103.72
Selling and Distribution Expenses 2,345.78 618.30
Office and General Expenses 220.59 163.07
Bad debts, Loans and Advances, other balances written off (net) 2.90 0.15
Directors Sitting Fees 2.30 0.45
Liquidated Damages on Sales 316.36 40,70
Exchange Fluctuation Loss (Net) - 295.03
Corporate Social Responsibiltiy (Refer Note 49) 99.06 86.06
Miscellaneous Expenditure 200.05 106.91

Total. ; 6,066.79 3.612.18
Earning per Share (EPS)- In accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-33)
e £ Year ended Yeéar ended
y 2 Lz March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Basic & Diluted Earnings per share Rs. Rs.
Profit & Loss for the year 6,495.29 4,933.74
Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (A) 6,495.29 4,933.74
Weighted average number of ordinary Equity shares (B) 15,00,000 15,00,000
(used as denominator for calculating basic EPS)
Weighted average number of ordinary Equity shares (C) 15,00,000 15,00,000
(used as denominator for calculating diluted EPS)
Nominal value of ordinary Equity share (Rs) 100.00 100.00
Earnings per share-Basic (A/B) (Rs) 433.02 328.92
Earnings per share-Diluted (A/C) (Rs) 433.02 328.92
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{All amounts are in Ks. Lakhs) -
Nates ferming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended Aarch 31, 2023 S
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Critical acceunting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial slatements requires the use of acoounting estimates which. by definition, will seldom squal the acwal results. This note provides an overview of the arcas that involved 8 higher degree of judgmert
or complexity, and of items which are more likely t¢ be matenslly adjusted dus to estimaies and assemptions ursing out 1o be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
Judgments is included in relevant riotes ogether with informalion about the basis of caleulation far ¢cach aiTected line item in the Anancial statements.

The areas invelving critical estimates or judgnients are:

1. Eslimation of usefui life of Properly, Plant and Equipment Note 4
2. Bsumation of usefuf life of imangible asset Note 6

3. Estimation ef defined benefit obligation Note 38

4. Estimation of continggnt liabilities refer Note 39

5. Estimation of fair value of unhisted securitics Note 42

Estimates and j are continually eval
be reasonable under the circumstances.

d. They are based on hisioncal expenience agd other factors. including expectations of future events that may have a fnancial impact on the Company and that are believed ta

During the year, the company has recognised the following amaunts in the financial statements as per Ind AS - 19 "Employees Benefils™ as specificd in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015:
a} Defined Contribution Plan

Cortribution to Defined Conwritution Plan, recognised are charged 1o Statement of Profit and Loss for the year as under

For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2023 2022
Emplover's Confribution 1o Provident Fund 140.15 116.21

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The present value of abligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises cack period of service as giviag rise to additional unit of employes benefil eardtoment and

measnres each unit separately to build up the final obligation and the obligation for leave 1 is ised in the some manner g gratity.
[ Graluity {Unfunded) | Leave Encashment |

AjEzpenses recopriised fn Statement of Probif and Loss 2 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 3 -Mur-22
| Currenit service Cost 30.18 2093 35.90 3279
2| Past service cosl = - =
3| Certailment & Settlement CostiCrediny o 5 -
4| Interest Expense 814 1397 390 176

Defined Benefits Cost ineluded in P&L 3834 34.50 39.80 37.58
B[Other Comprehensive Income 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 H-Mar-23 3 -Mar-22

f Achiarial (Gain) / Losses due 1o Demographic Assumption
changes in DBG
| Actuarial {Gain} / Losses due to Financial Assiwption

changes in DBC 1481 {2.13) 31.27 (1.04y

3 Actuarial (Gain)/ Losses due Lo Experience on DBO 547 37 (3.74) 22122
Total Actuarial {gain)/loss included in OCI 20.28 L4 27.53 EANE: S
Total cost recognised in P&L and OCI

1|Cost Recognised in P&L 3834 34.90 39.80 37.55

2[R Effect By ised in OCI 20.28 1.04 27.53 21.18
Total Defined Benefit Cost SH.62 35,04/ 67.33 58.73

C[Net Asset/{Liability) Recopnised fn Batance Sheet 3E-Mar-13 31-Mar-22 31-ATar-23 31-hlar-22

1| Present valoe of Funded Obligation - - x 5

2| Fair Value of Plan Asscls - . - -

3 Present value of Unfinded abligation 15263 10847 83.71 36,38
Funded status [Serplasf(Deficin] (152.63) (10847 (83.71} (36.38)

4 Present valuc of Encashiment Obligation - - TU.82 47.06

5{Present vatee of Availment Obligation - - 12.8% 932

6| Revised Sch TIT of Companies Act, 2013
Current Liabilily 2.09 042 13385 1326
Nen-Current Liability 150,54 98.06 6983 4112

D|Changes in Present Value of Obligutiens 31-Mar-23 3i-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

1 PmL Value of Defined Beneflils Obligation at Beginning 108.48 36297 5639 136.26
{Opeiing)

2jCurrent Service Cost I8 2093 3590 32.79

3} Interest Cost 8.l6 1397 390 4.76

4| Curtailment & Setttement Cost/(Credit) - > -

5| Actuarial {Gains¥Loss 937 L ud (1.67) 2118

6| Benefits Paid (3.56) (230.43) (10.81) (132,61

a PIESeI:I‘l Value Of Defined Benefits Obligation al the end 15263 10848 w17 64y
{Closing]

E|Changes i Fale Yasue of Plan Asscts 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31-Muar-22

1| Fair Value of Plan Asseis at the beginning - - -

2| Expected Reurn on Assets 2 - -

3 Employer Contribution - - -

& Employer direct benefit payments 3,36 23043 10.81 132.60

5i Plar Participanls Contributions - - -

& Settloments By Fund Manager - - -

7| Benefits Payouts {3.36) (230.43) (1081 {132.00)

BtActuarial paini(Less) - - -

| Fair Value of Plan assets at the end - 0

¥|Sensifivity analysis of the defineg bessefit obligation 31-Mur-23 31-Myr-22 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-22
Impact of the civange in Discopnt Rate

1| Present Value of Obligation al the end 152,63 108 48 3.7 56.39
Tmpact due to increase of 0,5% (13.13) .79 £7.00) “+.97
Tmpect due o decrease of §.5% 15.46 11.52 831 593
Impact of the change in sglary increase

2{Present Value of Obligation at the end 152,63 108,48 83,71 3639
Impact due to increase of (5% 1581 1181 8.30 ind
Taipact due to decrease of 0.5% (13613 (10.16) (7.09) {304}

Sensitivities due te mortality & withdrawals are tnsignificant & heuce ignored.
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Mabirify Srofilebtcfined benefit obligafioii: . B 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 Y N-Mar22
Projected Benefil Obligation at end 152.63 108.47 83.71 56,38
PAYOQUTS
1| March 2023 to March 2024 2.14 1042 1.27 G.A4
2 March 2024 to March 2025 419 Lds 410 0.81
3|March 2025 10 March 2026 16.67 260 269 23
4| March 2026 to March 2027 236 873 179 1.87
5|March 2027 to March 2028 13.49 1.50 601 112
6(March 2028 to March 2033 29.63 2821 15.58 1210
7| March 2633 onwards 92.14 $3.50 52.28 3173
H| Acturiil Assumptions m 31.Mar-22 31-Mar-23
1| Discount Rate 7.65% T40% 7.65%
2| Expected Rewrn on Assets 0.00% 0.00% 2.00% 0.00%
3| Salary Escalation 6%FSY & 4%TA GWFSY & 4UTA GUF3Y & 4%TA GUAFSY & 4%TA
4 Attrition raie L00% 1.00% 1.00% 10wk
Indian Assured Lives tnclian Assured Lives | Indian Assured Lives|  Indian Assured Lives
5| Mortality Morality (2012-14) Marality (2012-14) | Morality (2012-14) Mortality (20112-14}
Ultimals Ullimate Ultimate Ultimate
Note: The esti of rate of escafalion in splary “dered i acrnrial valuation, takes info account mflatien, seiioriy. promofion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the cmployment market. The
above information is certified by the Actuarial Veluer.
39 G i ts and Conti i
() Contingent Eiabilitiés not providedfoiFin respect of: Asat Asat
it 31.Mar.23 31,Mar,22
{i) Unexpired Letters of Credit 393168 1,640.30
(i1} Guaraniees given by hanks on behalf of the Company 2.537.93 1,802.75
(sii) Tmpact of pending litigations not acknowledged as debl in financial statements 4,732.36 473236
iv) Custor Duty against import under EPCG sclieme HNIL 614.51

(a) The Company's pending litigations comprise of dlaims against the Conpany and proceedings pending with Tax Authorities . The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and hos made adegquate
pravisions, wherever required and disclosed the centingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its ingneial statements. The Company docs not expeet the owtcome of these proceodings o have a manerial impact on its
financial position.

(b) The Company periodically reviews all its long term contracis to assess for any materinl foreseenble losses. Based on such review wherever applicable, the Company has macke adequate previsions for these long torol
gomracts in the books of account a5 required under any applicable law/accounting standard.

(¢ The company does 2ot have any outstanding derivative contract as on 31st March 2023,

(d) There are no amount which are reguired (0 be ransferred to the Investor Education and protection fund by the company

(dyThe Parliament of India has apuroved the Code on social Security, 2020 (the Code} which may impact the contributions by the Company towards provident fimd. gratuity and ESI. The Code has been published in the
Gazelie of India, However, the ellsctive dale has nol yel been notified. The Campany will assess the impact of the Code when it coimes into efieet and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes elfizetive.

(b} Capital Commitments Tt Ay at Al
L e gt [t 31,Mar,23 31.Mar22

Estimated amount of contracts femnaining to be executed on capital acoount and ot provided for (aet of advances) 496.49 L.66AE.5S

40 Segment Reporting ([nd-AS 108)
The chicf operational decision maker monitors the operating resulls of its busiaoss scgment separately for the purpase of making degisions about resource allecation and performance assessment. Sepment performanee is
evaluated based on profit o loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financis] statements
The i gr have been identified on Lhe basis of nature of products.
L. Segment revenue inoludes sales and other income direetly identifiable with the segmont including inter-segment revenue.
ii. Expenses that are directly identifinble with the segment are considerad for determining the segment rosult
Expenses / Incomes which are not dircetly allosable (o the segments are included under un-aflocable expenditure / incomes.
iv. Sogmont results include mergins on inter-sepment sales which are reduced i arriving at the profit beforg tax of the company,

v. Segment assets and Liabilitics include those dircetly identifinble with the respeclive segments. Un-allogable assels and liabilitics reprosent the assets and fiabilivies that relote (o the company a5 @ whele and not allocable to
any segment.

Inter — Segment revenue :- Segment revenue resulling from transactions with other business scgrents is accounted on the bysis of transiar price agreed between the segmenls. Such transfer prices are cither determined to yicld
a desired margin or agreed ou a negotiated basis.

) Primary Scgment Information (by Business Segments)
The Company is majorly engaged in the business of manufacturs of eptical fiber cables and other telecom rolated products. Thus. it operues in'a single primary segment.

b} Secondury Sepment Reporting (by Geographical Sepments)
The Company calers wmainly 1o the needs of' the domestic market and the export wmever being 6.67% (Previoas year 1.06%) of the lotal fumover of the Company, henee there are no reportable geegraphical segments

Revenoe of approximately 88.06% (Previous year 72.89%) are derived from rwa exiernal onstomers which individually accounted for more than 0%
41 As vequired by Ind AS - 24 "Related Party Disclosures™

{i3. Name ond description of related partics.

FRAnshin: E Name of Relatcd Party
{a ) Holding Company: HFCL Limited

{b) Fellow Subsidiary: Monela Finance Private Limited

HFCL Advange Sysytems Private Limilod

Polixel Scouritics Sysiems Private Lid

" | Dragonwave HFCL Tndia Private Ltd

Raddef Pvt. Ltd

HFCL Technologies Private Lid (w.e . 26.06.2021)

(c) Enlerprisc owned or signilicantly influcnced by holding| Exicom Tole-systens Lid
company's KMP or their relatives. Exicom Encrgy Systems Pat. Lid

) Enterprises o - F'wlﬁ?al‘lly influenced by Eay Nimpa Telecomunications Private Limited (w.c [l 14.06.2021)
mansgement personnet or their relatives

{e) Key management personnel : Mr.G.8. Naidv, COO & Manayer

Mr. C. D. Ponnappa Chicf Financial Officer
Mr. § Narayanan, Company Secretary

Note : Related party relationship is as identified by the Copany and relicd upon by the auditors.
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<ii>.dew-mmmmmmwmmummthMn-m

&5

Year ended March 31, [ ?ea-—aim_u.
Wy - ———wn
39,449.93 24,266.69
4236 39.17
43131 B45.98
Sales/rendering of Goods & Materials
HFCL Limited 51,965.59 32,760.25
Exicom Tele-systems Lid 98.88 11217
Nimpaa Telecommunications Private Limited 49.02 46.39
Exicom Encrgy Systems Pvi. Lid 3246 -
Expenses - Other cxpenses
HFCL Limited 1,250.31 4.66
Exicom Tele-systems Lid - 5
Nimpaa Telecommunications Private Limited 902.07 664.58
Expenses - Interest on Loans and Advances
HFCL Limited 965.00 965.00
Bal —=
HFCL Limited 330240 7.449.08
Exicom Tele-systems Lid 24.19 5238
Exicom Encrgy Systems Pvi. Lid 4.06 -
Closing Balances of Payable
HFCL Limited 70297 790.92
Nimpaa Telecommunications Private Limited 66.69 329.06
Closing Balances of Loan
HFCL Limited 2,450.00 2,450.00
Closing Balances of Advance
HFCL Limited 7.200.00 7.200.00
Remuneration of Key Management Personnel's
(a) Short term employee benefits
Mr.G.S Naidu, COO & Manager 96.05 56.22
Mr. C. D. Ponnappa Chief Financial Officer 67.09 56.86
Mr. § Narayanan, Company Secretary 50 2235
(b) Post employment benefits*
Mr.G.5 Naidu, COO & Manager - -
Mr. C. D. Ponnappa Chief Financial Officer - -
Mr. S Narayanan, Company Secretary - -
(c) Other long term benefits # - -
(d) Remuneration Payable
Mr.G.8.Naidu, COO & Manager 15.58 8.31
Mr. C. D. Ponnappa Chief Financial Officer 1L18 841
Mr. S Narayanan, Company Secretary 216 1.91
‘Nou:Mﬁelhbﬂiﬂufad:ﬁmdbu:ﬁ:phumpml&dmumrmbuufu-ﬂn(lomp-:yuawhok.dulmounl ing to key I | are not included

# Note: Value of Employees stock options/ restricted stock units issued by HFCL to HTL employees considered herein.

Financial Instruments by Category
: : Particulars
1) Financial Assets
1) Investments
Equity shares

(i) NSL Wind Power Company (Phoolwadi) Pvt Limited - 18.60 - - 17.08 -
II) Trade Receivables B - 18.149.69 - - 17.217.76
11I) Bank Deposits - - 251.42 - - 422.67
1V) Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 84.34 - - 65.83
V) Other Bank balances - - 216274 - - 221720
V1) Other Financial Assets - - 283 86 - - 447.90
Total Financial Assets = 18.60 132, = 17.08 20,371.36
2) Financial Liabilities

1) Borrowings

A) From Banks - - 9.776.04 = - 10.420.15
B) From Others - = 2,923.00 - - 357420

1) Trade Pavables - - 10,830.23 - - 15.678.19
I[II:Othw Financial Liabilitics - - 10.800.52 572 - 10,921.25
Total Fin: iabilit = - 34329.79 35.72 - 3.79
Fair Value measurement

Fair Value Hierarchy and valuati hnique used to & fair value :

The!huv.hnhmd:,-uhunimmpmmu]uuionwchniq-nﬂmnwwmfwsﬂu&nmd&udnmbkuunbmnhkuﬂmmminwlmell.Lw:lZandLevd]hq:uu

a) Year Ending March 31, 2023

mmm-uqxav*mr* : MN& A

Financial Asscts

Investments

1) NSL Wind Power Company (Phoolwadi) Pyt Limited 12 - - 18.60
T T > T = lﬁ

Note No.

Level 3
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b) Year Ending March 31, 2022
Mmmn!‘*v&:mm : Note No. S Fidnn et : Level2 Leveld
Financial Assets
Investments
i) NSL Wind Power C. vadi) Pvi Limited 12 - - l;‘oﬂ
- = = e Ry
Bewlo f Gt o Leas SEETE
- 3572 -
i S % &
mw\wﬂﬁmmwmnmwhnmmuh‘ using val hnigy mCMmijmmﬂulmdmwmwm“w

based on mrkelmnd:tinmeﬂnin'ulheadnfudlmpﬂliupciod.

Financial Risk Management

mcm'-wmwwmmannmamm.mlimqﬁmmmmumcwsmmmmmw P ility for the establish and

mvﬂg!uoflh:ﬁmwn)'ldslmmmnﬁmwkThmelym ituted a Risk M: Commi which is responsib for developing and itoring the Company's risk policies. The
Company's risk g policies are establish 'mmﬁmmhﬁmmwmm.mummmmmmwmuﬁmm dh 10 limits. Risk policics
MmmMWywmmmmmmthmﬂuﬁuu

Liquidity Risk

Ihhlliﬁnwhmﬁ:wiummmhm.mdning:hi;_mg:nmmuidmbothmmllndmmm.
mmmmmnmsshm:,-mmarmr‘ cash flows as at the Balance Sheet date.

As at March 31, 2023

1 0&23 16.791.12 11,663.70 5.127.42 16,791.12
Trade Payables 24 10,830.23 1083023 = : 10,830.23
Other liabilitics | 21 &25 10.800.52 3,600.52 7.200.00 10,800.52
As at March 31, 2022

vings 20&23 16,675.76 11,632.78 504298 16,675.76
Trade Pavables 24 15,678.19 15,678.19 - 15678.19
Other liabilities 21&25 10.956.97 3.756.97 7.200.00 10.956.97

Market Risk
Mh’kﬂdskillheﬁdsﬂmlheﬁinduufﬁm-:mﬁﬂomonﬁmmul|mh'umuuwlllﬂmnmbeusenfchnwinln.tnpmn Mutﬂﬁskouwmalhrunpsnfﬁsk:inuumnﬂ.mmkduh
prie:risk,nﬂ:nup-in'prmmtﬁmn:milmlﬂmdbynmriskh:lud:lo-smdbmminp.deposiu.FVTOCImm

The sensitivit ses in the following sections relate 1o the position as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
1. PRICE RISK
The company is mainly exposed 1o the price risk duc o its investment in oquity-hmdawmg:iuprinerisk-riaiuﬁmAsmuumuimurd:womimpmefprioe
1 ,ﬂumﬂmhwmhmmﬂ:ﬁmnwmmﬂmmhwm’ ifies its|risk in equity i , the Company
these investments. mmmmhlhmﬁwmmmmhm-mms.
the nisk management policies

qumyhimkhkhrdawdmﬂ:dampinmrkammpﬁceuﬂbemvnmum Fuquhyhmnm-iwﬁmhmm
equity sccuritics. hlwldaulpplmdn-dylnlddiu'unlahd

Rs.1.36 for ending March 2023 (Rs.1.71
Tb:ﬁir\ﬂwofmnf&ch':mminﬁirvﬂn:ﬂmghodu hﬂuf;‘?wmhlmzﬂn)i?‘wm
memmmmwmm‘lnmmmuﬂ comprehensive m.Almmmm
are not held for trading purposes. The fair value of d equity i lassi would have led to an equal but opposite effect.
nﬁk\ﬂmwmwahmiwiwmuumnﬂon was Rs 1860
Lakhs, (March 31st, 2022 was Rs.17.08 Lﬁulﬂ:ﬁimmdwmisﬁunﬂned
using valuation techniques.

2. INTEREST RATE RISK

Immrﬂhﬂnmmuﬁu\iuummﬂemur-ﬁmm' -nﬁmwmhﬂmmmhumdhmmd&
mﬂnmhwmenrdmnhmtqhmum.mcm’swm»nme diversifies its  portfolio minmmumrisk,wiﬁmpmwﬁnmchlimm-m
ﬁskufnhmmhmﬂainmmmmmmbym&&m'lhngdmmw with the risk Company has calcul d the impact of a 0.25%
obligations with floating interest rates. policies. &-nhmm,Ao.H%mmmm
th%mhpmmaﬂhxmnh.mm,llm.mhhnuu rates would have led 1o i an additi
MucthH.ZOH(RLRn.IJWd.JSLAkhuuMnd\Jln.2022) Rs.!LT}l-lkluhnfmyelrenddMlthllL 2022/
Imt&vmmmﬂolmﬁmfnryﬂruﬂdhh@!lm 2023 is Rs.2057.53 Lakhs (Rs.34.99 Lakhs loss for year ended March 31st
(Rs.1872.91 Lakhs as at March 3]s, 2022) 2022). A 0.25% decrease in interest rates would have|
led t© an equal but opposite effect.

Credit Risk

Ctedilﬁlki:shemkMmmﬁummnmimwarmmm«mmm‘m-rmh,mc«wmthwmwﬁkﬁwmw'mm
trade recei ) and from its financing activities, i "',dq;ummmbmhmdﬁnuzinlhmmhumdomuﬁmhlimnmu.

An analysis is perfc at each reporting date on an indi ‘*'hni:l'ormqur:licuuhﬁmlwmimmmm“mmmmﬂwmm
i . The maxil p Enuedilri:kuﬂumpmhlgdmumwnin;uluofadxchunfﬁmmdjxloledinNoInV‘TkawydnunuMdeolhuﬂlsmﬁly.TheCunp-nyevnlumlh
concentration of risk with respect to trade as low, as its mkﬂedinmﬂjmmimsndmwmmhﬁywm.

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Cmdalﬁskﬁnmhlwwwirhh-ﬂulﬂrmmiﬂ' itutions is ged by the in d: mm%m‘lmﬁ,cmmmhmmmwwhmmmmhﬁ.m
mlybewpdmdlhwgimh,w‘mwumubmhmiﬁmwmmrwhumummm"swﬁilmmm”m
Nm:ofﬂnecmm’sﬁm:hlamndthﬂ-ilwhedamdu:,-dﬂuewu:windnﬁiuudmtﬁduinmmobﬁsﬁuwmldm.
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Nates forming part of the Financizls Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Capital management

Capital includss issied equity capital and share premium and all other equity reserves attcibutable Lo the equily holders. The primary chjective of the Compan’s capital managemenl 1s to max:
The following t2ble provides delail of the deb and equity at the end of the reporing period

Particulars 31-Mnr-23 35-AMar-22
Debt {Nole 20 & 23} 16,791.12 16,675.76
Less: Cash and Cash equivalenis {Note 14) (34.34) (65.83)
Net Debt £6,706.78 16,609.93
Total Equity 14.336.83 7.877.31
Net Debt to Equity Ratig 1.57) 11

Ot of the total land in possession of the Company al Guindy Indusinal Aren, Chepnal. land measuring 35.89 acres s held by the Company in the capacrty of assignee 1 terms of assignment dee:
by Government of Tami] Nadu for Industrial Development of Guindy Industrial Ares, Chemmai In order lo give title of G above assigned land in favour of the Company. the Government of T
Company to surrender back 4.90 agres of umtilised land 1o the Small Industries Department. Chennai. The Company had surrendered the vacant land measuring 4 90 acres 1o the Small Industr

2002. In respect of the remzining land measuning 30.99 acres, the name of the Companm has been ettered in the revenve records of Ihe Government of Tamil Nadu The company is following up
Wadu for obtaining the clear title.

In respect of above said Jand, a Show Cause Notice (SCN) was issued on U8th June, 2020, by Office of the Revenue Divisional Officer. Guindy, Chennas, abjecting on palla of assigned land ent
of the Govt. Subsequently, interim stay on SCN was gramted by Hon'ble Madras High Court on 191k June, 2020 Furlher. date of heanng is vet 10 be Tixed by the Hon ble Madras High Courl

Loan of Rs.473 Lakhs (Previous year R5.624.20 Lakhs) tagether with interest acerued thereon of Rs 282013 Lakhs (Previous venr Rs 3398 24 Lakhs) is due ta Government of [ndia (GO In e
Tndia has aceapied the sequest to adjust Rs. 34700 Lakhs compensation receivable by HTL in case of ETP claim against the outstanding interes: poriion il respect of GOI Loan. [Refer Note 46].

In the previous year, the loan along with interest accrued thereon has been directed to be repaid and therefore same has been classified under Current Financial Liability. During the current y-
payment of Rs. 151.20 Lacs (PY Nil) towards Principal and Rs. 44812 Lacs (PY Mif} towards Interest Accrued Lhereon

Ciaims of Rs. 347.00 Lakhs receivable from BSNL against the compensation approved by Telecom Commission vide letter Mo U-37012/3/97-FAC dated 151 May. 2001 [or pre-closure of T
Telecommanications {DoT) vide latter No.U-37012-397-FAC dated 02,12.2003 has conveyed the decision of the competent authorilies to adjus! the above said amount against the interest
Gaovernrment of India Loan. In reply, the Company requested Dol vide leiter no. ¢3.12 ETP dated 08 [2.2003 1o adjus! the compensation amourt of Rs 347 04 Lakhs apamst the principal amou
01.05.2001, the date on which the compensalion was approved. The Govl. of [ndin has reiterated the adjustment of Rs 347 00 Lakhs compensation receivable by HTL 10 case of ETP claim again
outslanding loan from Government of India (GO) . After adjustment of ETP compensation of Rs 347 lakhs agmos! the interest portien of eulstanding GOl loan in terms of GO levter datec
Company has made adequate interest provisions 1l 31.03.2023. In the linancial stalements, lhe company has adjusted the said claim receivable [rom the inlerest liabiliry due 10 GOL, thouy
adjusiment & subsequent interest reconciliations is s1ill engaing. The Company expects no further lizbility, once the adjusiment i agreed upon [Refer Noe 45 above)

The Company has proposed for allotment of 8% redeemable and non-convertible prefersnce capital of Rs. 10,000 Lakhs by way of conversion of oulsianding Loans & advances extendad by HF
has submitted the propesal before Department of Telecommunications (DoT) vide iener HTL/D0T/21-22 dated 22.03 2622 for seekwg their administrative approval for the proposal so that ths
the Companies A<l cart be taken wup accordingly. The said proforence capital will be redeemed only afier repayment of GOI loan post the teceipt of approval on reconciliations and reduction of
Note 46 above] in guarterly instalmenls. in view ef this, entire Loans & advanges pavabie to HFCL Limited have been shown under "Non-Curcenl Finangia) Liabilily” in the financial stalements.

Share Based Payment
ay ESOP Plan
On Ociober 15, 2018, Holding Cémpany HFCL Limied approved the Employee Stock Oplion Plan (HECL Plan 2017) for the arant of stock oplions 1o the employess of HFCL and its

recogmises the cost towards the eptiens granted Lo lhe emploves of the company by boldme company through equiny seltled method. The Nomination, Remunerplion and Compensation Commun
plan through a trust established specially for this purpose.

In Ocicber 2018, the HFCL approved the grant 1o the employee of the Company under the HFCL plan 2617 The options under this grant vest 1o the employees as 10%, 30% and 30% of the &
second and third year from the date of grant respectively, with an exercise period ending 5 vear from Whe end of las vesting, The condinens lor number of options granted include service 1erm
the employees. These options are exercisable al a prevailing fair market value of per shace. Le., the closing markel price of he share of HFCL as on the Navonal Stock Ex¢change of India imm
grant,

NEarch 31, 2023 March:
Particul i ¥
arficulars No. of Opiions EVelgilled ﬁ‘wm uge No. of Options
Exergise price (Rs.)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,04,800 20.65 3,09,200
Granled Dusing the year -

Forfeited during the year
Exercise during the year

- - 2,04,400
Expired during the year - - -
Ouistanding at the end of the year 1,024,500 20.65 1,064,500
Exercisable ar the end of the year

= ] § 7,200

Exercise prices for oulstanding options al the end, of year

b) RSU Plan
On Oclaber 15, 2018, Holding Company HFCL Limited approved the Restricled Stock Units {RSUs) for the grant of RSUs (o the employees of HFCL and its subsidiarics

In Qctober 2018, the HFCL approved the prant 10 the employee of the Company under the RSUs. The RSUs under (his urant vest 1o e emplayees as 70% and 30% of the lotal grant at the end o

the date of grant respectively, with an exercise period ending 5 year [rom the end of last sesting. The conditions far number of oplions granted include service lerms and performance grade of th:
of RSUs will be Rs. 1/-,

The RSUs granted under the HFCL Plan 2017 are forfeited due 1o non achievement ol defined annual performance parameters as determined by the Nomination. Remuneration and Compensatio
beld on Aprl 23, 2022 and accordingly as on March 31, 2022 the share based pavinent reserve is adjusied

Maveh 31,2023 MEarch

Wreighted Average
Exercise price (Rs.)

Farticulars

No. of Opiions No. of Options

Qutslanding at the beginning of the year
Giranted During the year
Forfeiled during the year

J - 2,92,000

B = 2,92,000
Exercise during the year

Expired during the year

Qutstanding at the end of the vear
Exercisable at the end of the year

Exercise paces for oulsianding options al the end of vear
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HTL Limited :
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs)}

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

49 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses:

Patticainty March 31, 2023 Maich 31,2022
Amount required fo be spent by the company for the year Rs. 99.05 Lacs Rs. 86.06 Lacs
Amoum of expenditure incurred Nil Nil
Shortfall at the end of the year Rs. 99.05 Lacs Rs. 86,06 Lacs
Total of previous years shortfall Rs.75.42 Lacs Rs.40.63 Lacs

The CSR Projects of the Company viz, the Mobile Medical Units are|
being implemented with the project perind ol 3 vears in association wilh

The CSR Commiltge of the Company approved the Mobile Medical Unit project to
be taken vp in Hosur for a period of | year at a total cost of Rs. 51,560,550/~ Mol

Reason for shortfall the NGO viz, Wockharidi Foundation and the said Projects are in|with the NGO was execuled on 31.3.2022 and the said NGO will be implemenung
progress. Hence, the allocated project costs will be spent in the ensuing|ihe project in FY 2022-23. Further it has been planned 10 extend the project period
Financial Years a5 envisaged in the said Projects. 10 3 years in line with the CSR Praject af Chennat,

Natyre of CSR activities Preventive health care facilitieg for the needy people.

Preventive health care facilities for the needy people,

Delails of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a
trust controlled by the company in relation 1o CSR

d

penditure as per relevant accounting standard

Nil

Nil

Where & provision is made with respect to a linbility incurred

provision during the year shall be shown separately.

Opening Provision = Rs, Rs. 126.65 Lacs
{+) Provision made = Rs. 99.05 Lacs

(=) Expenditure incurred = Rs. 51.27 Lacs
Clesing Provision = Rs. 174.47 Lacs

by entering into a contractual obligation, the movemenis in the The provisioned and unspent amcunl of Rs. $9.05 Lacs has been|
subsequently deposiled 1o & separale account vz, HTL Lid- Unspent
Corporale Social Responsibility Accoum FY 2022-23 with Yes Bank|
B Lud, T Magar Branch on 24th April 2023,

The said NGO wiil be taking ugp the project during the FY 2023-24.

Opening Provision = Rs. 65.4% Lacs
(+) Pravision made = Rs 86.06 Lacs
(-) Expenditure incurred = Rs. 24.85 Lacs
Clesing Provision = Rs. 126.69 Lacs

The provisioned and unspenl amount of Rs. ®6.06 Lacs will be transferred 1o g
separate account viz., HTL Lid- Unspent Carporate Scaial Responsibilily Account

FY 2021-22 wath Yes Bank Lid., T.Magar Branch.

The said NGO will be waking up the praject during the FY 2022-23,

50 Disclosure required under Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (the Act) are given as follows :

Pt Mm?f_s‘f,‘zuzs ypﬂcﬁ:s?fzuzz
a.|Principal amount due * 1,475.06 1,352.61
Interest due on above Nil 4.94
b, [ Interest paid during the period beyond the appointed day Nil Nil
<.;Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment withoul adding ihe interest specified under the Act Nil Nil
d.[Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the period §.34 §.34
e Amnun_l of further interest remaining due and payable even in the s.ucmdlng years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to small Nil il
enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deduciible expenditure under Sec.23 of the Act

Note: The above information and that given in Note No.24 * Trade Payables' regarding Micro and Smal

the auditors.

I Erderprises has been determined on the basis of information wvailable with the Company and has been relied upon by

* Includes Amount of Rs 781.34 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.1252.42 Lakhs) cutstanding but not everdue lo Micro and Small Enterprises as on 31st March 2023

51 {A) Analytical Ratios

2 B | Current Period Previous Peried 2
tios: J R % Varis
Ratios i Numerator: Dencominalor (2022.23) (@2021-22) o Variance
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabililies 1.37 116 TR.LE%
Debt-Equity ratic Total Debt Total Shareholders |, 212 44.6K%
Equity
Debi-Service coverage ratio Earining [or Debl Service Debt Service 712 4.37 -19.67%
Inventory tarnover ratie Cast ol goods sold Avg Inventary 3.87 5.44 -1.84%
L Avp Accounts
‘Trade receivables turadver ratie Revenue (rom Operaton 7.15 5.65 26.50%
Receivable
Trade payables tuwrnover ratio Purchases Avg Accounts Payable 7.52 4.59 63.75%
Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from Cperation | Avg Working Capital 16.28 17.99 -9.55%
v hold
Return on equity ratio Net Income (PAT) Ave Sé‘::‘i’l:f’ = 58.48% 50.84% -35.61%
Net profit ratie Net Income (PAT) Totat Revenue 5.12% 487% 5109
Return on Capital emplayed EBIT Avg Capital Employed 52.70% 54.47% -3,25%
Return on Investment Income from Invesimenis Avy invesiments NA N.A -

Explanstion for variances exceeding 25%:

(i) Trade Receivables tunover ratio has improved due 1o reduction in Average receivabies in current period.

(ii) Trade Payables tumover ratio has improved due improved collections & payments in the current period
{iii} Though the EBIT ks increased in Current period, Returs on equily ratio has reduced due 10 inerease in average sharehalders equiny oh aceount of incTease in retained earmings in current vear and previoys vear,
(iv) Debt equity ratio has improved on account of increase in retained samings,




HTL Limited (
(All amounts are in Rs, Lakhs)
Notes forming part ef the Financials Statenaents for the year ended March 31, 2023

(B) Other statutory information:

(1) The Company doss not have auy bevami property, where any proceeding has been iniuated or pending ogoinst the Company for holding any benami PropeTiy
() The Company has not traded or invested in Crypta currency or Virwal Curreocy during the financial year
Giif) The Compuny has not advanced or loaned or imvested funds o any other person(s} or entifs (ivs}, including locign ent 1h the undersianding that e ntermedwry shuil:
{a) directly or indirectly Jund vr invest in other persons of entities ienlilicd in any manner whatsoever by or on beehali ol the company {ulliniate beneticiones) or
(b) provide any guarantes, security or the tike (o or en behall of the nltimate beneficinnes
(iv) The Compeny has not received any fund [rom sny person(s) ar entmyGes), meluding loreign enlities thunding parts ) witk the umd
(8) diseatly or indireelly lend or invest in other persoms ot eatities identificd in any manner wlatsoever by or on behalf ol the T
(b provide any guarantes, sscurity of the like on behalfof the ullimate beneficiaries
(v} The Company docs not have eny such transections which are nol recorded in tlie books of neeounts 1hal has been suwrendenad or
oF survey of any ather relevant provisions of the Income Tas Act, 19613
(vi) The Company has complied with the number of Inyers presenbed ander clause (87) of section 2 of the Compunies Act 2013 resd with the Conpurlies (restoicion on muanber of layers) Rutes, 2017
(vii} The Company is not dectared wilful defauiter by bank or financial instivatien or lender dunng the year.
(i) The Company does uot hdve any charges or satisfaction which is vet 1o bt registervd with ROC bevand the statetory period
(ix) The Company has used the borrowings from banks and Enansial instituliens For the speeific purpose for which 1t was ohtained
(¥} The Company does nol have any lransactions with companies which are struck off

wding {whether ecotded in writing or otherwise) Bt the company shelk:
ding party (ullimale hencliesnesy or

selused o

ame during e year i e tas assessments under te Ineome Tax Act. 1961 (such as, suach

52 Foreign Currency Exposure

4) The company underiakes transactions denominated in foreign currencics: consequently, exposures 1o axehanys raie uctuations will arise.

The Company uses forcign curzency forward contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations retating la certain firm commitments and forecasted trausactions. The use of Torcign curmency forward

contracts 15 gaverued by e Company’s strategy, which provides principles on the use of such forwand conteacts consistent with Company’s Rish Management Folicy. The Compagy €oes not use Tarward contraets for
speculative purposes.

The carrying amounts of the company's foreign currency denominated mouelary assets and monelary liabilitics gt the end of the reporting periad ere s follows:
b) Details of Cutstanding Hedging Contracts relating to Foreign Buyer's Credit :

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022
Parifeulars : . g -
Amount in Forcign Equivalent in INR Amount in Foreign FEquivalent in INR
Currency Currency
Forwgrd Contracts {Selly [ LSDANR = 1841749 1,378.94
¢} Forcign Currency Exposure:
As at March 31,2023 A at March 31,2022
Particulars i T . ;
AR Equivalentin INR et el Equivakat in INR
Currency Currency
Trads Payable USD/TNR 23.09,745.58; 2,063.44 28.15.953.02 2.134.69]
Trade Payable GHP/NR 545,49 056 1.050.80] 1.01
Capex Payable USD/ENR 1,98,740.00] L6340} ¥2,950.00 62 88
Capex Payable EUR/AMR - - LU, 500.00 8847
Trade Receivable USDYINR 16,51.396.00 133773 5.02.634.07| 381.03]
Tradz Receivable GBP/INR +.29,641.6% 4, 51260
Trade Reccivable EUR/NR 3,39.192.24] 21433 9.068.35 7.68

d) Foreign currency sensitivity analysis:
The following details arc demonstmue (he Company's scositivity 10 & 3% increase and decrease in the INR agast the relavam [oreign currencics. The seasitivily analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency

denominated monetary items as tabulated sbove and adjusis their transiation al the period end for a 3% chiange in forgign cumency ratos The sensitivity analysis includes external feans. A positive number below indicates an
inczease in profit or equily and vice-versa.

As ol March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022
Titpact o Profit & Tusy far the year R Strengihe
v Y L Sht:f,ﬁ:m‘"s by INR weakening by 5% | INR Strenpthens by 5% | INR weakening by 3%
USD hnpact 43,46 {340} 90,83 {90.83)
EURC Lnpact (10n72) .72 4414 (AL
GBP Impacl (225.003 225,60] 0.05 (0.05)
53 Exceptional Item

The Company has introduced & Veluntary Retirement Scheme (VRS) 262| 1o shigibie cmployeesiaflicers and the VRS Schome was remained apen Trem 4 Octobor 2021 1o 11t November 2021, VRS Compensation paid
during the previous financial year amounting o Rs.637 67 Lakhs has been disclosed as an cxceptional item 1n the financial resalls.

54 Tax Reconciltation

Parfleulars FY 2022:33 FY'2021-22
Net Profit as per S1atement of Profil and Loss (before tax) 4,403.21 0.644.44]
Current Tax rate @ 25.17% 2,265.93 1.6731.53
Adjustment:
Depreciation & other adjusiment 96,804 w47
Amowt of eligible / incligible expenditure 37.32 (31.01)
Provision for Interest on Tax Payment L37.50 -
Tax Provision as per Books 2,537.76 1,735.89
55 Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessmy to confirm current vear's classification ¢ presentation.
For Oswul Sunil & Company For and on bthall of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg, No.; $16520N
R. MKASTIA K.C. JANT
Dircctor Director
DIN: UNG5305% TIN: 02335192
NISHANT BHANSALI
Partner
M.No.z 532900
S, NARAYANAN C D PONNAPPA
Company Seceelary Chicl Financial OMcer
M.No ACS3772 FAN: ACZPPIZITQ

New Delhi, 28th April 2023 New Deliu. 28th Aprl 2023






ATTENDANCE SLIP|

HTL LIMITED
(CIN: U93090TN1960P1L.C0O04355)
Regd.Office: GST Road, Guindy, Chennai-600 032.

Email: coo(@htllimited.com; Website: www htllimited.com
Phone: 044- 22501020,

62N? ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2023

I/'We hereby record my/our presence at the 62" Annual General Meeting of the Company
at GST Road, Guindy, Chennai - 600032 / thru’ Video Conferencing over MS Teams on
Friday, 28™ July, 2023 at 12.30 P.M.

Member’s Folio Member’s/ Proxy’s Name Member’s / Proxy’s
Signature

Note:

1. Please complete the Folio No and name, sign the Attendance Slip and hand over /
send it over at the Meeting Hall,

2. Physical copy of the Annual Report for 2023 and Notice of the Annual General
Meeting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is sent in the permitted mode
to all Members.
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GUIDELINES TO SHAREHOLDERS WHO OPT FOR ATTENDING THE 62N>
AGM THRU’ VIDEO CONFERENCING

As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic,
the general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8,
2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05,
2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, Circular No. 19/2021 dated
December 08, 2021, Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, Circular No.
2/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and General Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28,
2022. The forthcoming AGM will thus be held at the Registered Office of the Company
at GST Road, Guindy, Chennai — 600 032 and thru” Video Conferencing. Hence,
Members who send their requests from their registered email id with the Company for
attending this meeting thru” Video Conferencing can attend and participate in the
ensuing AGM through VC over MS Teams (Thru’ the Link to be provided thru’ the

registered email).

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
is sending Notice of the AGM to the address registered with the Company or with the
depository pariicipant/ depository.

The Members requesting to attend this meeting thru” Video Conferencing can join the
AGM in the VC mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.
The facility of participation at the AGM through VC will be made available to the

interested Members, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Auditors etc,

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC will be counted for
the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint
proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However,
in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013,
representatives of the members such as the President of India or body corporate can

attend the AGM through VC and cast their votes.
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GUIDELINES TO SHAREHOLDERS WHO OPT FOR ATTENDING THE 62NP
AGM THRU’ VIDEO CONFERENCING

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April
13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the

Company at www.htllimited.com.

The AGM has been convened through VC in compliance with applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020
and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020
dated May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, MCA
Circular No. 19/2021 dated December 08, 2021, MCA Circular No. 21/2021 dated
December 14, 2021, MCA Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and General
Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and
MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020,May 05, 2020, January 13, 2021,
December 08, 2021, December 14, 2021, May 05, 2022 and December 28, 2022 the
Company is providing facility of e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to

be transacted at the AGM, details of which are as follows:-

(i) Shareholders shall be able to cast their vote on all business items mentioned in the
AGM Notice during the meeting only, on order of Poll by the Chairman of the
Meeting.

(ii) For this purpose, the Company is providing a designated e-mail address as follows,
the Members can convey their votes, when a poll is required to be taken during

the Meeting on any resolution, at such designated e-mail address: -

Designated E-Mail Address for casting votes by Members:-

snarayanan@htllimited.com.



GUIDELINES TO SHAREHOLDERS WHO OPT FOR ATTENDING THE 62ND
AGM THRU’ VIDEO CONFERENCING

(il During the Meeting held through VC facility, where a poll on any item is
required, the Members shall cast their vote on the resolutions only by sending e-
mails through e-mail addresses, which are registered with the Company. The said
e-mails shall only be sent to the designated e-mail address circulated by the

Company.

For any query/ grievance related to attending AGM through VC/OAVM or e-voting,
please contact to the following person:-

Company: HTL Limited

Name: S.Narayanan

E-mail: snarayanan@htllimited.com
Telephone/Mobile No. 7010456750

rrrrrrr
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PROXY FORM|

HTL LIMITED
(CIN: U93090TN1960PLC0O04355)
Regd.Office: GST Road, Guindy, Chennai — 600032, (Tamil Nadu)
Email: coo@htllimited.com; Website: www htllimited.com
Phone: 044-22501020.

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member (s) :

Registered Address

E-mail Id g

Folio No 5 DP-1D / Client-ID*

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

I/We being the member(s) holding shares of HTL Ltd., of Rs.100/- each
hereby appoint:
(1) Name:
Address:
E-Mail Id Signature

or failing him:

(2} Name:
Address:
E-Mail Id Stgnature
or failing him:
(3) Name:
Address:
E-Mail 1d Signature

And whose signature(s) are appended in Proxy Form as my / our proxy to attend and vote
(on a poll) for me / us and my / our behalf at the 62" Annual General Meeting of the
Company, to be held on Friday, 28" July, 2023 at 12.30 P.M. at GST Road, Guindy,
Chennai — 600 032 (Tamil Nadu) / thrw’ Video Conferencing over MS Teams and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:



1D

#*] wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the Box below:

Resolution
No.

Resolutions

Optional

For Against

Ordinary Business

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March, 2023 together with the Reports of the Board
of Directors and Auditors thereon.

To - appoint a Director in place of Shri Mahendra
Nahata (holding DIN- 00052898) who retires by
rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being
eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Shri K. C. Jani
(holding DIN- 02535299) who retires by rotation at
this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment.

Special Busi

NnEss

4.

To consider and approve re-appointment and revision
in remuneration of Shri G. S. Naidu, Chief Operating
Officer as ‘Manager’ of the Company under the
Companies Act, 2013.

To consider and approve regularization of
appointment of Additional Director, Shri Rajeev
Sabherwal, as Director of the Company under the
Companies Act, 2013.

To consider and ratify the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditors.

To consider and increase the borrowing powers of the
Board and authorization limit to secure borrowings
under Section 180(1){(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Signed this day of

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy Holder (s)

2023.

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Notes: (1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 (Forty
Eight) hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

(2) A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company.



&)

&k (4)

(3)

(6)

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and
holding an aggregate of not more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company cartying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person
or shareholder.

This is only optional. Please put an *X’ in the appropriate column against the
Resolution indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ coloumn
blank against any or all the Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in
the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

Appointing a Proxy does not prevent a Member from attending the Meeting in
person if he so wishes.

Please complete all details including details of member(s) in above box before
submission.

R R
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